
 

AGENDA FOR 
 

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact: Michael Cunliffe 
Direct Line: 0161 253 5399 

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk 
Website:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of Planning Control Committee 

 
Councillors : S Thorpe (Chair), C Boles, D Duncalfe, 

U Farooq, J Harris, M Hayes, B Ibrahim, D Quinn, 
G Staples-Jones, D Vernon and M Walsh 

 

 
Dear Member/Colleague 

 
Planning Control Committee 

 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee 
which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Tuesday, 19 December 2023 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 

briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related 

report should be contacted. 

Notes: https://councilstream.com/burycouncil/3207 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether 
they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to 

formally declare that interest. 
 

3   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 21ST NOVEMBER 2023  

(Pages 3 - 6) 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 21st November 2023 are 
attached.  
 

4   PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 7 - 72) 
 

Reports attached. 
 

5   DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 73 - 84) 

 

A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated 

planning decisions since the last meeting of the planning control committee is 
attached. 
 

6   PLANNING APPEALS  (Pages 85 - 96) 
 

A report from the Head of Development Management on all planning appeal 
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is 
attached. 
 

7   PLANNING ENFORCEMENT  (Pages 97 - 104) 

 

A report from the Head of Development Management providing statistical 
information on Enforcement activity between the 1st January 2023 to the 1st 

December 2023 is attached.  
 

8   URGENT BUSINESS   
 

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 

agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 



 

 

1 

 

 Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 21 November 2023 

 
 Present: Councillor S Thorpe (in the Chair) 

Councillors C Boles, D Duncalfe, J Harris, M Hayes, B Ibrahim, 
D Quinn, G Staples-Jones, D Vernon and M Walsh 

   

 Public Attendance: 44 members of the public were present at the meeting. 

   

 
PCC.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor U Farooq 
 

PCC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

 
PCC.3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 24TH OCTOBER 2023  

 
Delegated decision: 

 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 24th October 2023 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
PCC.4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to 
applications for planning permission.  

 
There was supplementary information to add in respect of application number 69054, 
69932, 70044, 70061 and 70071. 

 
The Committee heard representations from objectors, applicants and Ward Councillors 

in respect of applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for the speaker. 
 
Delegated decisions: 

 
1. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

report and any supplementary information submitted subject to all other 
conditions included: 
 

Abbotts Hall, Woodhey Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9RD 

Removal of condition 3 of planning permission ref. 54822 - to remove the occupancy 

restriction 
 
2. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 21 November 2023  

 
 

 

2 

report and any supplementary information submitted subject to all other 
conditions included: 

 

25 Randale Drive, Bury, BL9 8HZ 

Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to children's residential care home (Class C2) 

 
3. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

report with an amended condition 16 to include Swift bricks, and subject to all 
other conditions included:- 

 
Unit, 1-2 Halter Inn Works, 11 Redisher Croft, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9SA 

Demolition of existing industrial buildings and erection of 3 no. detached dwellings 
 
4. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 
report and any supplementary information submitted subject to all other 
conditions included: 
 

5 Square Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9BE 

Change of use from chiropractor (Class E) to bar (Sui Generis) (part retrospective) 

 
5. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 
report and any supplementary information submitted subject to all other 
conditions included: 

 
47 Church Street West, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2SP 

First floor extension at rear 
 
6. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 
report and any supplementary information submitted subject to all other 

conditions included: 
 
Site of Radcliffe Leisure Centre, Spring Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2SZ 

Erection of new secondary school alongside supporting sports facilities, car parking, 
landscaping, site infrastructure, new access road and associated access infrastructure 

 
PCC.5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 
planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last 

meeting of the Planning Control Committee. 
 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the report and appendices be noted.  

 
PCC.6  PLANNING APPEALS  

 

Page 4



 Planning Control Committee, 21 November 2023 
 
 

 
3 

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 
planning and enforcement appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning 

Control Committee.  
 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the report and appendices be noted.  

 
PCC.7  URGENT BUSINESS  

 

No urgent business was reported. 
 

 
 
 

 
COUNCILLOR S THORPE 

Chair  

 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.10pm and ended at 8.30pm) 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee

On: 19 December 2023

By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.

Policy: Identified in each case.

Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.  

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could
include a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
2. Certificates relating to the ownership.
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
4. Responses from Consultees.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 8



01  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No.  69956

 Location: Pilsworth Quarry, Pilsworth Road, Bury, BL9 8QZ
 Proposal: Erection and operation of a Material Recycling Facility and associated

works
 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - West App No.  70195

 Location: Millwood Primary Special School, School Street, Radcliffe, Manchester,
M26 3BW

 Proposal: Erection of an extension to contain classrooms, multi- purpose hall and
support areas; Landscaping works to include dedicated play areas,
railings and external pagoda and additional car parking on the existing
school site.

 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
03  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth App No.  68667

 Location: Land between 18 & 24 Bradley Fold Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5QD
 Proposal: Erection of 1 no. dwelling
 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item   01 

 
Applicant:  Valencia Waste Management Ltd 
 
Location: Pilsworth Quarry, Pilsworth Road, Bury, BL9 8QZ 

 
Proposal: Erection and operation of a Material Recycling Facility and associated works 
 
Application Ref:   69956/Full Target Date:  17/11/2023 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application concerns a development at the Pilsworth South Quarry which is situated to 
the south of Pilsworth Road and just to the east of the M66 motorway.  The application site 
is located within the boroughs Green Belt. 
 
Planning permission is sought for a Proposed Materials Recycling Plant located on land to 
the west of the office buildings on the site. The proposed building will extract recyclables 
and inert materials from being deposited on the landfill. The proposed building would 
measure 52m by 39m.  It would have an eaves height of approximately 9m and a ridge 
height of circa 12.5m. The building is proposed to be a steel portal frame on breeze block 
with internal breeze-block push walls and steel cladding externally and to the roof. 
 
The proposed Materials Recycling Plant is to be accessed via the existing road junction to 
the landfill site, utilising the existing weighbridges and offices.  
 
The application states the proposed development will be removed from the site during the 
restoration of the landfill.  
 
Previous applications have included proposals similar to this application (approved under 
Bury MBC planning ref: 47617) which have not been constructed. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
28072 - Revised landfill and restoration scheme - Approved with Conditions, 04/03/1993 
 
29828 - Outline: Installation of Generator run from Gas produced in a Gasifier using short 
rotational coppice as the fuel together with associated barn for storage of fuel - Approved 
with Conditions, 11/08/1994 
 
30237 - Extension to Existing quarrying and landfilling operations including restoration in 
part to agriculture and woodland - Approved with Conditions, 20/07/1995 
 
31264 - Erection of mobile landfill gas flare unit - Approved, 14/09/1995 
 
36972 - Extension to the Energy Centre, including the provision of leachate treatment 
lagoons and revised landfill - Approved with Conditions, 16/02/2021 
 
43575 - Erection of Modular building for use as environmental education centre - Approved 
with Conditions, 23/12/2004 
 
45528 - Extraction of Sand and Gravel from extension area prior to creation of approved 

Page 11



landscape buffer zone including in part backfilling and restoration with controlled waste - 
Approved with Conditions, 01/03/2006  
 
47617 - Waste Reception, Transfer, Recycling and Pre-Treatment Facility = Approved with 
Conditions, 21/05/2007 
 
54012 - Waste Reception, Transfer, Recycling and Pre-treatment Facility - Approved with 
Conditions 09/08/2011 
 
53453 - Vertical and lateral extension, re-phasing and enhanced restoration and ecological 
scheme at Pilsworth South Landfill within the consented site boundary - Approved with 
Conditions, 09/05/2012 
 
54563 - Scrap metal and aggregate/soils recycling facility - Approved with Conditions, 
25/01/2012 
 
54831 - Revised restoration and ecological scheme to Pilsworth North Quarry and Landfill  
(Amending approval 34895)  - Withdrawn by Applicant, 14/03/2013 
 
58004 - Installation of a pilot energy storage system and associated development for a 2 
year operational period - Approved with Conditions, 10/12/2014 
 
59691 - Erection of 2 no. leachate storage tanks and associated works - Approved with 
Conditions, 08/08/2016 
 
61708 - Erection of a security fence and gates to the perimeter of the site - Approve with 
Conditions 25/08/2017 
 
62626 - Non material amendment following grant of planning permission 59691 for change 
to the layout of the proposed leachate tanks and a reduction in the height of the proposed 
tanks. Minor amendments to associated infrastructure. - Approve with Conditions 
13/04/2018 
 
66971 - Non material amendment following approval of planning permission 65157- 
Changes to plan dimensions of tanks and position of fences - Approved with Conditions 
08/06/2021 
 
Two of the above-mentioned planning applications are particularly relevant to this applicant. 
Firstly, the extant consent for landfilling ref: 53453 which allows landfilling to continue at the 
site until 2028. Within the application, the applicant advises an application will be submitted 
in due course to seek an extension to landfilling operations. 
 
Secondly, the planning approval ref: 47617 for a ‘Waste Reception, Transfer Recycling and 
pre-treatment facility’ which was proposed on land to the south of the offices/weighbridge.  
This approved development was not constructed. 
 
Publicity 
The proposed development has been advertised within the Press and by Site Notice due  
to being Major Development and has also been advertised as a Departure from the 
Development Plan also due to its location within the Green Belt. 
 
5 letters of objection have been raised from nearby residents who raise the following 
concerns: 
 
Amenity 

Page 12



• Raises concerns about the odour smells from the landfill - advising it is smelt from up to 
2 miles away 

• States odour and flies from the property are "horrendous" 

• Notes air quality has been noticeably poor in within the last decade as a result of smell 
of the landfill. 

• No longer landfill, it is an artificially created mountain, an uncapped and stinking 
eyesore.  

• States that the Viridor site is bordered on three sides by public 
footpaths/bridleway/cycleway, and the smells emanating from it are discouraging  

 
Impact on the local highway network 

• Raises concern that the proposal will cause further traffic around Junction 3 of the M66 
leading to more motorists queuing on the hardshoulder of the M66 to exit the motorway. 

• Raises concerns that extra development will add to traffic congestion which already 
leads to long queues of traffic.  

• Asserts the applicants' statements about little traffic impact on Pilsworth Road, Croft 
Lane and the M66 are not credible.  

• Raises concerns about the potholes on Pilsworth Road and questions why the potholes 
are not filled in. 

 
Other Matters 

• Questions when the landfill will end, stating it was only supposed to be a landfill site for 
5 years. 

• Objects to further development stating the Viridor site has exceeded its proposed life 
expectancy and is a blight on Bury.  

• Asserts there must be potential for toxins from the landfill site to leach into local 
waterways. 

 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the measures and facilities detailed in the  
'Construction Management Plan' being implemented to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority and be adhered to throughout the construction period.   
 
Borough Engineer - Drainage Section - No comments or observations received. 
 
Waste Management - No comments or observations received. 
 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to conditions 
requiring contaminated land site investigation, detailed risk assessment and remediation 
strategy, and electric vehicle charging provision for at least 20% of the proposed parking 
spaces. 
 
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objections. 
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to issues relating to biodiversity 
enhancement measures being secured via condition. 
 
The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to conditions requiring intrusive site 
investigations to be carried out on site to establish the risks posed to the development by 
past coal mining activity, and; any remediation works and/or mitigation measures to address 
land instability arising from coal mining legacy, as may be necessary, have been 
implemented on site in full in order to ensure that the site is made safe and stable for the 
development proposed and a signed statement or declaration prepared by a suitably 
competent person confirming that the site is, or has been made, safe and stable for the 

Page 13



approved development. 
 
Transport for Greater Manchester - No objections, advising the quantum of development 
hereby proposed does not trigger the requirement of a highway impact review. 
 
United Utilities (Water and waste) - No objections, subject to the imposition of a condition 
requiring a sustainable surface water drainage scheme and a foul water drainage scheme to 
be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of development. 
 
Planning & Building Regs consultation Fire Protection Dept Bury Fire Station (Part B) 
- No comments or observations received. 
 
Environment Agency - No objections. 
 
Health & Safety Executive - Quarries  - No comments or observations received. 
 
Minerals and Waste Planning Unit - No objections. 
 
G M Archaeological Advisory Service - No objections. 
 
National Highways - No objections 
 
Active Travel England - No objections 
 
Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - Initially advised a Crime Impact 
Assessment should accompany this application.  On submission of the Crime Impact 
Statement, GM Police were re-consulted. Any response subsequently received will be 
reported to Members within the Supplementary Report. 
 
Rochdale MBC - No objections but request the site provides adequate wheel washing 
facilities for vehicles exiting the site. 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
OL1 Green Belt 
OL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt 
OL1/5 Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt 
EN9 Landscape 
EN9/1 Special Landscape Areas 
MW1 Protection of Mineral Resources 
MW1/1 Areas of Search 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT2/7 Lorry Parking 
HT2/10 Development Affecting Trunk Roads 
GMMWP Greater Manchester Minerals and Waste Plan 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
NPPG National Planning Policy Guide 
 
 
Environmental Impact Assessment Screening 
This proposal exhibits characteristics that would best be related to Schedule 2 Section 11(b) 
of the Town & Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 (as 
amended), which is defined as: “Installations for the disposal of waste (unless included in 

Page 14



Schedule 1)”. 
 
Set against the indicative thresholds and criteria advice the proposal individually and in 
combination with existing and planned development does not breach the thresholds 
identified in the particular sections of the Regulations and Planning Practice Guidance. 
 
Based on the consideration of both the criteria within Schedule 3 of the Regulations for 
Schedule 2 Sections 11 (b), and the Planning Practice Guidance it is considered that EIA 
would not be required in this instance. 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations, including relevant policies in the emerging Places for Everyone Joint 
Development Plan.  
 
The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be 
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For 
simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless there is a particular 
matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically 
mentioned. 
 
The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) is a joint plan covering 
nine of the ten Greater Manchester districts, including Bury, and is intended to provide the 
overarching framework to strategically manage growth across the boroughs. 
 
PfE was published in August 2021 and subsequently submitted to the Secretary of State in 
February 2022. Inspectors have been appointed to carry out an independent examination of 
the Plan with the hearing sessions commencing in November 2022 and were concluding in 
July 2023. The examination of the plan is on-going. 
 
Whilst PfE cannot be given full weight until it is adopted, its advanced stage of preparation 
means that it is now considered reasonable that the Plan (as proposed to be modified) 
should be given weight in the decision-making process in line with paragraph 48 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Consequently, the principle of this application has been considered against the Plan (as 
proposed to be modified).  
 
Principle of Development 
The application site falls within the Green Belt (UDP Policy OL1) and Special Landscape 
Area (UDP Policy EN9/1), as defined by the adopted Unitary Development Plan (UDP). The 
site also falls within an Area of Search for Minerals (UDP Policy MW1/1) within the adopted 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP).  
 
Green Belt 
In relation to proposals that affect the Green Belt, Paragraph 147 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) makes it clear that inappropriate development is harmful to the 
green belt and should not be approved except in Very Special Circumstances.   
 
Paragraph 149 specifies that Local Planning Authorities should regard the construction of 
new buildings as inappropriate development in the Green Belt and should not be approved 
except in very special circumstances. The NPPF states that "When considering any 
planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is 

Page 15



given to any harm to the green belt. 'Very special circumstances' will not exist unless the 
potential harm to the green belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm 
resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations".  
 
Although the application involves inappropriate development in the Green Belt, it includes a 
satisfactory case for 'very special' circumstances to justify the development. The proposals 
seek to undertake an activity which is directly linked to the existing landfill and can therefore 
be considered to be ancillary to the current activities on site. The proposed development is 
also temporary in nature and does not prevent the restoration of the site in the future as the 
building and machinery will be removed prior to the cessation of landfilling.  
 
Given the above, in the context of national planning policy, the proposed development will 
not impact on the permanence of the Green Belt and 'very special' circumstances exist to 
justify the development, in principle therefore, the proposal is not considered to be an 
inappropriate use in the Greenbelt. 
 
The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) is a joint plan covering 
nine of the ten Greater Manchester districts, including Bury, and is intended to provide the 
overarching framework to strategically manage growth across the boroughs. PfE was 
published in August 2021 and subsequently submitted to the Secretary of State in February 
2022. Inspectors have been appointed to carry out an independent examination of the Plan 
with the hearing sessions commencing in November 2022 and were concluding in July 
2023. The examination of the plan is on-going. 
 
Whilst PfE cannot be given full weight until it is adopted, its advanced stage of preparation 
means that it is now considered reasonable that the Plan (as proposed to be modified) 
should be given weight in the decision-making process in line with paragraph 48 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. Consequently, the principle of this application has 
been considered against the Plan (as proposed to be modified). However, the principle of 
this proposal does not give rise to any conflict with PfE policies. 
 
Based upon the above, the proposal is acceptable in principle. 
 
The proposals impact on minerals resources and the visual amenity and character of the 
landscape in which the application site is set will be assessed under the visual amenity 
section of this report.  
 
Mineral Safeguarding  
The site falls within an Area of Search for Minerals (UDP Policy MW1/1). However, the site 
has already been quarried for its minerals and is now being used for landfill purposes.  
 
The application site is within a Mineral Safeguarding Area, as defined within the Greater 
Manchester Minerals and Waste Plan. This site has been extracted of its minerals and is 
now a landfill site.  
 
The general premise of the proposed development that provides for the recycling, 
processing and recovery is in accordance with and supported by the Objectives and Policies 
set out in the Joint Waste Plan and is therefore acceptable on this ground. 
 
Ground Conditions 
The site historically remained undeveloped until the development of the landfill when this 
area of the site has been in use for hardcore screening. Surrounding historical uses have 
included a sand quarry and more recently a landfill with offices, car parking and 
weighbridges. The site is currently in use as a storage area. 
 

Page 16



The site is in close proximity to two landfill sites and a number of ponds are situated to the 
east and south of the site. The site is situated above the Lower Coal Measures Formation 
Secondary A Aquifer which is overlain by Glaciofluvial Sand and Gravel.  
 
A Phase 1 Desk Study and Preliminary Risk Assessment Report has been received and 
commented on by this Section (please see attached response).  Further investigation has 
been recommended and is required prior to any development commencing on site.  It is 
therefore recommended that this be secured by condition, along with any remediation 
considered to be necessary to make the site safe.  A condition is also recommended which 
would ensure any remediation is carried out to a satisfactory standard. 
 
Coal Mining Legacy 
The application site falls within the defined Development High Risk Area; therefore within 
the application site and surrounding area there are coal mining features and hazards which 
need to be considered in relation to the determination of this planning application. 
 
The Coal Authority records indicate that a thick coal seam outcrops at or close to the 
surface of the site which may have been worked in the past and historic unrecorded 
underground coal mining is likely to have taken place beneath the site at shallow depth.  
Voids and broken ground associated with such workings can pose a risk of ground 
instability and may give rise to the emission of mine gases.  The site also lies within a 
Surface Coal Resource Zone.   
 
The Coal Authority advise that the applicant has obtained appropriate and up-to-date coal 
mining information for the proposed development site.  This information has been used to 
inform a Coal Mining Risk Assessment (or equivalent) (June 2023, prepared by Wardell 
Armstrong) to accompany the planning application.   
 
The report is able to identify that, based upon a review of available information, there is a 
risk of unrecorded shallow mine workings to be present beneath the site due to Arley coal 
seam conjectured to outcrop at the site.  The thickness of superficial deposits is currently 
unknown and the report affirms that it is possible that should such workings collapse, voids 
at ground surface (crown holes) may develop. Accordingly, the report recommends that the 
applicant should carry out a suitably designed rotary borehole investigation and on 
completion interpret the data and review the risk assessment. 
 
The Coal Authority recommend that intrusive site investigations should be designed and 
undertaken by competent persons and should be appropriate to assess the ground 
conditions on the site in order to establish the coal-mining legacy present and the risks it 
may pose to the development and inform any remedial works and/or mitigation measures 
that may be necessary. The Coal Authority have therefore recommended a planning 
condition be imposed to secure the above.   
 
Mine Gas 
It should be noted that wherever coal resources or coal mine features exist at shallow depth 
or at the surface, there is the potential for mine gases to exist.   The Planning and 
Development Team at the Coal Authority, in its role of statutory consultee in the planning 
process, only comments on gas issues if their data indicates that gas emissions have been 
recorded on the site.  However, the absence of such a comment should not be interpreted 
to imply that there are no gas risks present.  Whether or not specific emissions have been 
noted by the Coal Authority, they advise, local planning authorities should seek their own 
technical advice on the gas hazards that may exist, and appropriate measures to be 
implemented, from technically competent personnel. Officers therefore recommend suitably 
worded planning conditions to ensure mine gas does not adversely affect future users of the 
proposed building. 

Page 17



 
Based on all of the above, subject to the recommended planning conditions, planning 
conditions can be imposed to ensure the site is suitable for its proposed use taking account 
of ground conditions and any risks arising from land instability, landfill and mine gases, and 
contamination, in accordance with the requirements of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Heritage 
Greater Manchester Archaeological Unit have been consulted on the application.  Having 
checked their records they are satisfied that the proposed development does not threaten 
any known or suspected archaeological heritage. On this basis there is no reason to seek to 
impose any archaeological requirements upon the applicant. 
 
Biodiversity 
A valid ecological report has been provided this included eDNA surveys for great crested 
newts.  No evidence of any protected species or other wildlife was found.  Given the site is 
primarily bare earth, within an existing active quarry/landfill, Officers have no reason to 
doubt the findings of the report.  Whilst some of the piles of waste could provide theoretical 
cover for nesting birds etc, Greater Manchester Ecology Unit is satisfied that the risks are 
very low.   
 
Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment 
Paragraph 174 of the NPPF 2023 states that the planning policies and decisions should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. The application site is 
primarily bare ground with photographs indicating sparse and scattered early successional 
vegetation.  The wildlife value of the site is negligible.  Any biodiversity measures would 
likely result in an overall enhancement to biodiversity  Given the entire site technically has 
a restoration plan, any habitat creation measures implemented now, would likely be of 
temporary to medium term.  The best approach would therefore be as suggested by the 
consultant to provide bird boxes around the perimeter of the site on existing trees.  The 
details are therefore secured by planning condition.  
 
Parking and Highway Safety 
UPD Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development requires all applications for  
development to make adequate provision for their car parking and servicing requirements in 
accordance with the Council's parking standards, laid out in SPD11. 
 
The application is supported by a satisfactory number of parking bays and also swept path 
analysis demonstrating HGV's can manoeuvre around the site in a forward gear.  The 
proposals indicate that the proposed development would result in approximately 8 additional 
vehicles going to and from the site per day. 
 
Design and Visual Amenity 
The application site is within a Special Landscape Area, as defined upon the Proposals Map 
associated with the adopted Unitary Development Plan. 
 
UDP Policy EN9/1 states that in those areas identified on the Proposals Map as Special 
Landscape Areas, any development which is permitted will be strictly controlled and 
required to be sympathetic to its surroundings in terms of its visual impact. High standards 
of design, siting and landscaping will be expected. Unduly obtrusive development will not be 
permitted in such areas. Any development on the site should be subject to strict control to 
protect or enhance the character of these areas. 
 
UDP Policy EN1/1 regarding Visual Amenity also states that development will not be 
permitted where proposals would have a detrimental effect on the visual amenity both 

Page 18



within, or viewed from, areas of environmental interest such as the Green Belt, Special 
Landscape Areas or the river valleys. The site is designated as Green Belt and as a Special 
Landscape Area. 
 
The Landscape and Visual Assessment submitted with the application concludes that the 
visual effects of the proposals are minimal and that there are no adverse significant effects. 
 
The proposed height and extent of the proposed building is governed by the operational 
needs of vehicles discharging their loads within the building and the space required to 
operate in safety the storage, sorting, separating, recycling and loading activities. 
Nevertheless, the design and location has taken into account, where possible, the 
surrounding environment which includes a designation as Special Landscape Areas (Policy 
EN9/1). Thus, the site is in a location that is least obtrusive in terms of the surrounding 
topography and the existing substantial tree screen along the motorway. The colour of steel 
cladding proposed to the walls and roof have not been stated within the application and 
therefore it is recommended this aspect be controlled by planning conditon. Provided 
suitably coloured materials are used, in the near vicinity the appearance of the building 
would be absorbed by the nearby topography and tree screen. In terms of more distant 
views the main impact of the building would be that the top portion of the building may be 
partly visible over a long distance from the south and west and then only from a limited 
number of properties at an oblique angle.  The mound that has been created at the site - 
see Photograph no. 4 will also screen the building from longer range views. It should also 
be noted that the structure would not be permanent but would remain in place only for the 
duration of the tippling operation and would be demolished on its completion. 
 
As the proposal is temporary in nature and the buildings and machinery would be removed 
following cessation of the landfill any impact on the Special Landscape Area is reversible 
and the character of the landscape will be improved once restoration of the quarry site has 
taken place.  A planning condition is recommended to ensure the building would be 
removed on ceasation of the landfill site.  Subject to this condition, and a condition 
requiring details of colouring of the materials, it is therefore considered that the proposal is 
not in conflict with UDP Policy EN9/1 or UDP Policy EN1/1. 
 
Residential Amenity 
The landfill site is surrounded by a small number of sporadic residential receptors. The 
nearest residential property to the landfill operations is Jackson Fold some 60m to the north 
of the existing landfill boundary on the opposite side of Pilsworth Road. The Three Arrows 
Inn and a set of three cottages; the Boskins/Whippletree Cottage/Coal Pits Farm) lie 235m 
and 400m east of the proposed landfill boundary respectively.  Four dwellings known as 
Pilsworth Cottages abut the Pilsworth South Landscape Buffer Zone (LBZ) some 320m 
south of the consented landfill boundary. Further south of the site, and beyond the deeply 
incised valley of Brightley Brook, there are a number of scattered dwellings; all of these are 
over 500m from the Landscape Buffer Zone.  A group of dwellings known as Hollins Estate 
lies further afield over 600m from the proposed development site on the opposite side of the 
M66. 
 
The concerns raised in the representations are fully acknowledged, however, this 
application must be assessed on its own merits.  The proposal seeks to minimise the 
amount of material going to landfill by intercepting waste that is heading for landfill and 
extracting recyclable materials which would then be removed from site for recycling, re-use. 
recovery by third parties elsewhere. 
 
Whilst odour from the existing landfill will not be affected as part of these proposals, the 
proposal will not result in odour conditions changing that would be any worse than nearby 
residents already experience, as all waste currently enters the site and goes straight to 

Page 19



landfill, whereas this proposal seeks to minimise the amount of material going into the 
landfill.  The proposals are therefore acceptable in this regard pursuant to Policy EN7/1 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Utilities, Drainage and Flood Risk 
Paragraph 167 of the Framework (2021) states that Local Planning Authorities should 
ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere (i.e. outside areas at risk of flooding) and only 
consider development appropriate in areas at risk of flooding where proposals are informed 
by a site-specific flood risk assessment. 
 
UDP Policy EN5/1 concerns itself with new development and flood risk and states the 
Council will not permit new development, including the raising of land, and the intensification 
of development, where such development would be at risk from flooding, or would be likely 
to increase the risk of flooding elsewhere, or affect river flood defences.  
 
The application site is located in Flood Zone 1 which is identified as being an area which 
has the lowest risk of flooding. United Utilities have viewed the proposals have 
recommended a condition relating to drainage be imposed, should Members be minded to 
approve the proposals.  This condition is duly recommended. 
 
Crime and Security 
Both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance 
(PPG) set out guidance in creating safe and accessible communities.paragraphs 58 and 69 
of the NPPF recommend that local planning authorities ensure their policies and decisions 
aim to create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder, and the fear of 
crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion. The Design section of the 
PPG includes crime prevention and security measures. 
 
A Crime Impact Statement has been submitted and Whilst GM Police have not yet provided 
any views on the submitted Crime Impact Statement, Officers are satisfied that the building 
would be located on what is a secure site, with the crime prevention measures currently 
operated by the applicant.  The proposal is therefore acceptable in this regard.  
 
Conclusion 
Although the application involves inappropriate development in the Green Belt, by vuirtue of 
this being a new building in the Green Belt, the submission includes a satisfactory case for 
'very special' circumstances to justify the development. The proposals seek to undertake an 
activity which is directly linked to the existing landfill and can therefore be considered to be 
ancillary to the current activities on site. The proposed development is also temporary in 
nature and does not prevent the restoration of the site in the future as the building and 
machinery will be removed prior to the cessation of landfilling.  
 
Given the above, in the context of national planning policy, the proposed development will 
not impact on the permanence of the Green Belt and 'very special' circumstances exist to 
justify the development, in principle therefore, the proposal is not considered to be an 
inappropriate use in the Greenbelt. 
 
Subject to all of the recommended planning conditions being imposed, the proposal is 
considered to be acceptable in all other regards and it is thus recommended that the 
application be approved. 
 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 

Page 20



 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development shall only remain in place until landfilling ceases on site. The 
Material Recycling Facility building, hardstanding areas and other associated 
structures shall be removed and the land fully restored in accordance with already 
approved drawings LE10698/EIA 4.14 rev B and  LE10698/EIA 4.15 approved 
under application 53453, not later than the 12 months after the cessation of 
landfilling operations, or in accordance with any subsequent variations to the 
approved landfilling operations or restoration scheme agreed beforehand in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the landscape character and appearance of the area 
pursuant to Policies OL1/5 - Mineral Development and Other Development in the 
Green Belt. EN1/1 - Visual Amenity and EN9/1 - Special Landscape Areas of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

2. This permission relates to the following plans and documents: 
 
Drawing no. EC:9595.D01.002: Location Plan @ 1:2500; 
 
Drawing no. ECL.9595.D01.004 A: Proposed Building Elevations;  
 
Drawing no. ECL.9595.D01.007: Proposed parking plan layout;  
 
Drawing no. ECL9595. D01 003: Swept Path Analysis; 
 
Drawing no. ECL9595.D01/008: Proposed Section Plan; 
 
Preliminary Ecology Appraisal; and 
 
Appendix 1 Construction Management Plan 
 
Except as provided for by other conditions to this permission, the development 
shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved drawings. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
development in accordance with the policies contained within the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 
 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

Page 21



• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

4. No development shall commence until; 
 
a) a scheme of intrusive site investigations has been carried out on site to 
establish the risks posed to the development by past coal mining activity, and; 
b) any remediation works and/or mitigation measures to address land instability 
arising from coal mining legacy, as may be necessary, have been implemented on 
site in full in order to ensure that the site is made safe and stable for the 
development proposed. 
 
The intrusive site investigations and remedial works shall be carried out in 
accordance with authoritative UK guidance. 
 
Reason: The undertaking of intrusive site investigations, prior to the 
commencement of development, is considered to be necessary to ensure that 
adequate information pertaining to ground conditions and coal mining legacy is 
available to enable appropriate remedial and mitigatory measures to be identified 
and carried out before building works commence on site. This is in order to ensure 
the safety and stability of the development, in accordance with paragraphs 178 
and 179 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

5. Prior to the commencement of development, details of a sustainable surface water 
drainage scheme and a foul water drainage scheme shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage schemes must 
include: 
 
(i) An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This investigation 
shall include evidence of an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for 
infiltration of surface water in accordance with BRE365; 
(ii) A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning 
authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); 
(iii) Levels of the proposed drainage systems including proposed ground and 
finished floor levels in AOD; 
(iv) Incorporate mitigation measures to manage the risk of sewer surcharge where 
applicable; and 
(v) Foul and surface water shall drain on separate systems. 
 
The approved schemes shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any 
subsequent replacement national standards. 
 

Page 22



Prior to occupation of the proposed development, the drainage schemes shall be 
completed in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter for the 
lifetime of the development. 
 
Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policy EN5/1 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

6. The measures and facilities detailed in the approved 'Construction Management 
Plan' shall implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and be 
adhered to throughout the construction period, with the measures retained and 
facilities used for the intended purpose for the duration of the construction period.  
 
Reason: To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the 
proposed development on the adjacent highways, ensure adequate construction 
traffic access and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the 
demolition and construction periods and that the adopted highways are kept free 
of deposited material from the ground works operations. 
 

 

7. Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application and the 
requirements of condition 2 of this permission, no above ground works shall take 
place until samples or full details of all materials to be used on the external 
surfaces of the buildings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of 
the materials. The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance 
with the duly approved materials. 
 
Reason: To ensure use of appropriate materials which are sympathetic to the 
character of surrounding buildings and the street scene in the interests of visual 
amenity in accordance with the requirements of Policies ENV1 - 'Visual Amenity' 
and EN9/1 - 'Special Landscape Areas' of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
the National Planning Policy Framework as no material samples accompany this 
application. 
 

 

8. Following the provisions of Conditions 3 and 4 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and a 
Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each stage 
of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development 
being brought into use. 
 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  
 

 

9. Prior to occupation the applicant shall provide electric vehicle (EV) charging points 
for at least 20% of the proposed parking spaces. EV charge points shall be 7kW* 
as a minimum. 
 

Page 23



Reason: To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the 
development is sustainable pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 
 

 

10. The mitigation and opportunities for enhancement measures identified within 
section 4.2 of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, dated June 2023, carried out 
by Environmental Business Appraisal, shall be implemented prior to occupation 
and use of the building hereby approved. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision of appropriate biodiversity enhancements in 
accordance with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework, the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 and the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). 
 

 
For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 24



 
 
 

Page 25



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69956

Pilsworth Quarry, Pilsworth 
Road

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Fl Sk

Weir

G
a

n
tr y

Tank

Tank

Jackson Fold Barn

El Sub Sta

4

5

7

Warehouse

Station

House

Rochester

Arundel

House

Pumping

Superstore

7

Pond

P
on

ds

Pond

Ponds

Pond

Pond

Issues

Pond

Pond

Pond

Issues

Drain

Pond

Issues

Landfill (Deposit)

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD
PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD
PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD
PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD
PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD
PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD
PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

PILSWORTH ROAD

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

HARRY HILL CYCLEWAY

Track

WB

Track

WB

WB

P
a
th

 (u
m

)

109.1m

1

2
3

Viewpoints

Page 26



69956  

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 

 Page 27



69956  

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 
 

Page 28



Location of Photo 4 - from Footpath 5WHI near Thurston Fold Farm off Griffin Lane  

 

 
 

Page 29



Proposed
MRF

Quarantine

HARDCORE

SRF
Other Other Other

8.000

8.0008.000 8.000

+50mm
LIGHTS

HARDCORE WOOD RESIDUE PLASTIC/
OTHER

10-50mm
LIGHTS FROM
WATERBATH

10-50mm
LIGHTS

0-10mm
FINES

+50mm
HEAVIES
FE METALS

+50mm
MID-HEAVIES
PICKED FE METALS

10-50mm
HEAVIES
FE METALS

PICKING
STATION
CABIN

SKIP

COMBI
SCREEN

DRUM
SEPERATOR

DUST
EXT.

DUST
FILTER

DUST
FILTER

COMPRESSOR

LONG
PARTS

FE
METALS

SHREDDER
INFEED

INFEED

IN
C

LIN
ED

C
O

N
VEYO

R

IN
C

LIN
ED

C
O

N
VEYO

R

PRE-SHRED INCLINE
CONVEYOR

72.00

49
.0

0

20.000

CONVEYOR

ProposedMRF

Quarantine

HAR
DCORE

SRF

Other
Other

Other

8.000

8.000

8.000

8.000

+50mmLIGHTS

HARDCORE WOOD
RESIDUE PLASTIC/OTHER

10-50mmLIGHTS FROM
WATERBATH

10-50mmLIGHTS

0-10mmFINES

+50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

+50mmMID-HEAVIES
PICKED FE METALS 10-50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

PICKINGSTATIONCABIN

SKIP

COMBISCREEN

DRUMSEPERATOR

DUSTEXT.

DUSTFILTER
DUSTFILTER

COMPRESSOR

LONGPARTSFE
METALS

SHREDDERINFEED

INFEED

INCLINED
CO

NVEYO
R

INCLINED
CO

NVEYO
R

PRE-SHRED
INCLINECONVEYOR

72.00

49
.0

0

20.000

CONVEYOR

Notes

Date

Scale @ A1Status

Drawn by Checked by Approved by

Drawing Number

C
AD

 F
ile

 R
ef

: P
:\9

59
5 

Pi
ls

w
or

th
 S

ou
th

 M
R

F 
D

es
ig

n 
& 

Pl
an

ni
ng

\E
A\

C
AD

 &
 B

IM
\D

ra
w

in
gs

\C
ur

re
nt

 W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\E

C
L.

95
95

.D
01

.0
02

.d
w

g

Rev Modification By Chk App Date

Revision

Date Date

©
EG

N
IO

L 
C

O
N

SU
LT

IN
G

 L
IM

IT
ED

Egniol Consulting Limited
Unit 7, Llys Onnen, Ffordd y Llyn

Parc Menai, Bangor,
LL57 4DF

Telephone: 01248 355996
Email: info@egniol.com

A
Updated Site Boundary 

LE GR GS 12.07.23Updated Ownership Boundary 

Valencia Waste
Management Ltd

Pilsworth Landfill Site

Proposed MRF Locaton

LE GOJR RK

18.01.2023

AS SHOWNDRAFT

-ECL.9595.D01.002

18.01.2023 17.08.2023

1. Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map. With
permission of the Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey,
License no. AC0000849896.

2. All dimensions in Metres and all levels in metres Above
Ordnance Datum Newlyn.

3. Do not scale from this drawing.

4. Any anomalies on this drawing should be brought to the
attention of Egniol Consulting Ltd.

5. Key.

Land under the control of the Applicant

Application Site

Scale 1:2500

Scale 1:500

P
age 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
RWT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
WT



Ridge Level 12.4m

Eaves Level 9.0m

GF Level 0.00m

North Elevation - Front Elevation
Scale 1:200

South Elevation - Rear Elevation
Scale 1:200

West Elevation - Side Elevation
Scale 1:200

East Elevation - Side Elevation
Scale 1:200

5.
10

0

49.000

49.000

5.
10

0

72.000

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

72.000

8.000

5.
10

0

Ridge Level 12.4m

Eaves Level 9.0m

GF Level 0.00m

Ridge Level 12.4m

Eaves Level 9.0m

GF Level 0.00m

Ridge Level 12.4m

Eaves Level 9.0m

GF Level 0.00m

Quarantine Bay

10.000

10.000

2.
50

0

2.
50

0

Quarantine Bay

8.000

2.
50

0

Quarantine Bay

Notes

Date

Scale @ A1Status

Drawn by Checked by Approved by

Drawing Number

C
AD

 F
ile

 R
ef

: P
:\9

59
5 

Pi
ls

w
or

th
 S

ou
th

 M
R

F 
D

es
ig

n 
& 

Pl
an

ni
ng

\E
A\

C
AD

 &
 B

IM
\D

ra
w

in
gs

\C
ur

re
nt

 W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\E

C
L.

95
95

.D
01

.0
04

.d
w

g

Rev Modification By Chk App Date

Revision

Date Date

©
EG

N
IO

L 
C

O
N

SU
LT

IN
G

 L
IM

IT
ED

Egniol Consulting Limited
Unit 7, Llys Onnen, Ffordd y Llyn

Parc Menai, Bangor,
LL57 4DF

Telephone: 01248 355996
Email: info@egniol.com

A Updated Building Colour LE GR GR 12.07.23

Valencia Waste
Management Ltd

Pilsworth Landfill Site

Building Elevations

LE GOJR NR

23.01.2023

1:200DRAFT

AECL.9595.D01.004

23.01.2023 26.01.2023

1. Survey information provided by Valencia Waste
Management Ltd.

2. All levels in metres Above Ordnance Datum Newlyn.

3. Do not scale from this drawing.

4. Any anomalies on this drawing should be brought to the
attention of Egniol Consulting Ltd.

5. MRF Building Paint Code 'BS12B29'.

P
age 31



100

10
0

100

10
2

101

101

101

TREES

TREES

MH

SUB STA.

W
AL

KW
AY

POND

GAS
FLARE

MH

ProposedMRF

HAR
DCORE

SRF

Other
Labels

Other

8.000

8.000

8.000

8.000

+50mmLIGHTS

HARDCORE WOOD
RESIDUE PLASTIC/OTHER

10-50mmLIGHTS FROM
WATERBATH

10-50mmLIGHTS

0-10mmFINES

+50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

+50mmMID-HEAVIES
PICKED FE METALS 10-50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

PICKINGSTATIONCABIN

SKIP

COMBISCREEN

DRUMSEPERATOR

DUSTEXT.

DUSTFILTER
DUSTFILTER

COMPRESSOR

LONGPARTSFE
METALS

SHREDDERINFEED

INFEED

INCLINED
CO

NVEYO
R

INCLINED
CO

NVEYO
R

PRE-SHRED INCLINECONVEYOR

72.00

49
.0

0

20.000

CONVEYOR

Quarantine

10
2

101

ProposedMRF

RESIDUE PLASTIC/OTHER

0-10mmFINES

+50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

PICKED FE METALS 10-50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

PICKINGSTATION

COMBISCREEN

DRUMSEPERATOR

DUSTEXT.

DUSTFILTER
DUSTFILTER

COMPRESSOR

INCLINED
CO

NVEYO
R

CONVEYOR

10
2

101

Proposed

RESIDUE PLASTIC/OTHER

0-10mmFINES

+50mm

10-50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

COMBISCREEN

DRUMSEPERATOR

DUSTEXT.

DUSTFILTER
DUSTFILTER

COMPRESSOR

CONVEYOR

10
2

101

ProposedMRF

RESIDUE PLASTIC/OTHER

0-10mmFINES

+50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

10-50mmHEAVIESFE METALS

COMBISCREEN

DRUMSEPERATOR

DUSTEXT.

DUSTFILTER
DUSTFILTER

COMPRESSOR

INCLINED
CO

NVEYO
R

CONVEYOR

Notes

Date

Scale @ A1Status

Drawn by Checked by Approved by

Drawing Number

C
AD

 F
ile

 R
ef

: P
:\9

59
5 

Pi
ls

w
or

th
 S

ou
th

 M
R

F 
D

es
ig

n 
& 

Pl
an

ni
ng

\E
A\

C
AD

 &
 B

IM
\D

ra
w

in
gs

\C
ur

re
nt

 W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\E

C
L.

95
95

.D
01

.0
07

.d
w

g

Rev Modification By Chk App Date

Revision

Date Date

©
EG

N
IO

L 
C

O
N

SU
LT

IN
G

 L
IM

IT
ED

Egniol Consulting Limited
Unit 7, Llys Onnen, Ffordd y Llyn

Parc Menai, Bangor,
LL57 4DF

Telephone: 01248 355996
Email: info@egniol.com

A
Updated Site Boundary 

LE GR GS 12.07.23Updated Ownership Boundary 

Valencia Waste
Management Ltd

Pilsworth Landfill Site

Proposed Parking Plan Layout

LE GOJR RK

16.08.2023

1:250DRAFT

-ECL.9595.D01.007

16.08.2023 16.08.2023

1. Survey information provided by Valencia Waste
Managment Ltd

2. All dimensions in Metres and all levels in metres Above
Ordnance Datum Newlyn.

3. Do not scale from this drawing.

4. Any anomalies on this drawing should be brought to the
attention of Egniol Consulting Ltd.

5. Key.

Land under the control of the Applicant

Application Site

1.2m Width Pedestrian Access.

Concrete Hardstanding.

Indicative Parking Space - 4.8m x 2.4m
1x Disabled Parking Space included.

P
age 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
RWT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
WT



  
 
Ward: Radcliffe - West Item   02 

 
Applicant:  Bury Council 
 
Location: Millwood Primary Special School, School Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3BW 

 
Proposal: Erection of an extension to contain classrooms, multi- purpose hall and support 

areas; Landscaping works to include dedicated play areas, railings and external 
pagoda and additional car parking on the existing school site. 

 
Application Ref:   70195/Full Target Date:  22/01/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
This application is presented to Planning Control Committee as the applicant is Bury 
Council and 1 objection has been received.  
 
Description 
The application site contains a school, which serves 171 pupils with special educational 
needs from the ages of 2 - 11. The school opened in 2012 and contains a central teaching 
hub, three teaching wings and a hydrotherapy pool. The building is single storey and is set 
back from the boundary with School Street. The school is constructed from cladding and a 
composite panel standing seam roof. To the north of the school building is a multi use 
games area (MUGA) and a play area. There are also individual play spaces associated with 
each classroom wing.  
 
The school is accessed from School Street and there is a car park with 115 spaces, 
including 8 accessible spaces and minibus drop off areas.  
 
There is vacant land to the east, which has planning consent for 91 dwellings and there is a 
builders yard to the north. There are residential properties and a industrial/storage yard to 
the south. The Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal forms the boundary to the west with 
industrial buildings beyond. 
 
Proposed development 
The proposed development involves the extension (1379 square metres) to the school 
building and the extension to the existing car park.  
 
The proposed extension would be located to the west of the main school building and would 
contain 7 classrooms, a multi-purpose hall and other ancillary accommodation. The 
proposed extension would provide a maximum of 70 places at the school and staffing 
numbers would increase by 35. 
 
The proposed extension of the car park would provide 22 new parking spaces and would be 
located to the west of the existing car park. The car park would be accessed from 2 disabled 
parking bays, which would be re-provided within the car park extension. A minibus drop off 
area would be provided, but this would result in a loss of spaces. Overall, the level of 
parking would be increased by 19 spaces.  
 
Pedestrian and vehicular access would remain as existing and would be taken from School 
Street. Cycle stands and a minibus drop off/pick off would be provided between the 
proposed car park and the main school building.  

Page 33



 
Relevant Planning History 
45673 - Outline application - Residential development including associated infrastructure 
and open space at Radcliffe High School, Abden Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions 
- 13 September 2007. 
 
52038 - Full planning for construction of a new primary school for children with special 
educational needs together with the construction of associated parking and external play 
areas;  
Outline proposals to develop the remaining high school site for housing at Radcliffe High 
School, School Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 16 February 2010. 
 
53401 - Application for non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 
52038 to provide: 
1. An enclosed garage area 
2. Amended canopy design 
3. Addition of a door at Millwood SEN School, School Street, Radcliffe. Approved - 4 March 
2011. 
 
53879 - Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 52038: 
1. Addition of 2M wide gates within fence lines to the grassed play areas to rear of school to 
allow for cutting equipment. 
2. Addition of turning area for transit sized vehicle near the muga pitch at end of access 
driveway. 
3. 1.2M high steel grating fence to play rear substituted with 1.2M bow top fencing. 
4. Timber cog roll fencing to outdoor classroom area substituted with 1.2M bow top fencing. 
5. Addition of timber gate between service yard and outside room 105 play area. 
6. Revision to the triangle of land to the east of the classroom 94-100 playgrounds; land 
incorporated into the play area as tarmac and fence realigned; fence type along eastern 
edge of classroom playgrounds from room 105 up to the muga pitch changed to 2.4M 
perimeter fence type and direct gated access to woodland walk omitted 
at Millwood SEN School, School Street, Radcliffe. Approved - 1 July 2011. 
 
63145 - Construction of 2 no. new classroom areas with ancillary accommodation at 
Millwood Primary Special School, School Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 4 
October 2018. 
 
02883/E - Provision of a new classroom block and additional car parking at Millwood 
Primary Special School, School Street, Radcliffe. Enquiry completed - 5 October 2023. 
 
Adjacent site 
69233 - Residential development to erect 90 dwellings with associated parking and 
landscaping at site of the former Riverside High School, School Street, Radcliffe. Approved 
with conditions - 24 November 2023. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 26 October 2023 and a 
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 2 November 2023. Site notices were 
posted on  
 
1 letter of support has been received, which has raised the following issues: 

• Proposal would provide much needed school spaces for the local community. 
 
1 letter has been received, which has raised the following issues: 

• Constant traffic at the school as it is with all the building work which is forever going on. 

Page 34



• You can only get onto the estate from 1 way, traffic is already congested at the best of 
times.  

• All the workers park outside houses blocking half the path. They start work building at 
ridiculous times 7am sometimes including weekends. 

 
The neighbouring properties have been notified of revised plans on 30 November 2023. 
 
Any representations received will be reported in the Supplementary Report. 
 
The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to access 
improvements, turning facilities and car parking.  
Drainage Section - No response. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
Environmental Health - Air Quality - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions 
relating to electric vehicle charging points. 
Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections. 
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to 
protection of the canal & SBI and nesting birds. 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to surface 
water drainage.  
Canal & River Trust - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to a 
Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) and external lighting. 
The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to coal 
mining. 
GM Fire Service - No response. 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Awaiting confirmation that the agent agrees with the pre-start 
conditions. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN1/4 Street Furniture 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8 Woodland and Trees 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT4 New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
CF2 Education Land and Buildings 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 35



 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Community facilities - Policy CF1/1 states that proposals for new and 
improved community facilities will be considered with regard to the following factors: 

• impact on residential amenity and the local environment; 

• traffic generation and car parking provision; 

• the scale and size of the development; 

• where applicable, access to shops and other services; 

• if the use is intended to serve a local community, or catchment area, the suitability of the 
chosen location in relation to that community or catchment area; 

• accessibility by public and private transport; 

• the needs and requirements of the disabled. 
 
Policy CF2 states that the Council will, where appropriate, consider favourably proposals for 
the provision, improvement and dual use of educational facilities.  
 
The proposal includes an extension to contain classrooms, multi- purpose hall and support 
areas coupled with landscaping works to include dedicated play areas, railings and external 
pagoda and additional car parking on the existing Millwood School site on School Street in 
Radcliffe.  Millwood School is designated as a community special school for children with 
very complex medical needs and the proposal for the extension to the existing school is 
designed to meet a growing demand for placements at the school.   
 
The proposal would result in additional provision and new and improved facilities for the 
school. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies CF1/1 
and CF2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Places for Everyone - The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) is 
a joint plan covering nine of the ten Greater Manchester districts, including Bury, and is 
intended to provide the overarching framework to strategically manage growth across the 
boroughs.  
  
PfE was published in August 2021 and subsequently submitted to the Secretary of State in 
February 2022. Inspectors have been appointed to carry out an independent examination of 
the Plan with the hearing sessions commencing in November 2022 and were concluding in 
July 2023. The examination of the plan is on-going.  
  
Given the advanced stage in the preparation of PfE, it is already considered reasonable that 
the Plan (as proposed to be modified) should be given weight in the decision-making 
process in line with paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework.   
  
Consequently, the principle of this application has been considered against PfE (as 
proposed to be modified). 
 
Policy JP-P5 - Education, Skills and Knowledge states that "Significant enhancements in 

Page 36



education, skills and knowledge to benefit existing and new residents will be promoted" 
through "enabling the delivery of new and improved accessible facilities for all ages, such as 
early years, schools, further and higher education". 
 
As such, the proposal is in conformity with PfE Policy JP-P5. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed development would involve a single storey extension to 
the western boundary of the existing building. The proposed extension would contain 7 
classrooms and a multi purpose hall. Given the location of the proposed extension and the 
fact that it is single storey, the proposed development would not overwhelm the original 
building and would be appropriate in terms of design and scale.  
 
The proposed extension would be of a modern design with large areas of glazing and a 
pitched roof and would match the design of the existing school.  The proposed extension 
would be constructed from cladding and a composite panel standing seam roof, which 
would match the existing building. As such, the proposed development would not be a 
prominent feature in the streetscene and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and 
CF1/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
The proposed car park extension would be located adjacent to School Street and would be 
accessed from two disabled parking bays within the existing car park. The proposed car 
park has been amended since pre-application discussions, which would have removed 6-7 
trees. The current proposal would result in the loss of 2 trees and the retention of 6 trees 
along the frontage with School Street. Whilst 2 trees would be removed, this would not have 
a significant adverse impact upon the character of the area. The trees would be replaced 
elsewhere in the site. As such, the proposed development would not impact upon the 
character of the area and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and CF1/1 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD 6 provides guidance on aspect standards 
between residential properties. Whilst the proposed development is not a residential 
property, it does provide a yardstick of appropriate interfaces between the proposed 
development and residential properties.  
 
The nearest residential properties would be some 60 metres away from the proposed 
extension. As such, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties.  
 
The proposed extension would be located opposite the industrial/storage area to the south 
of School Street and there would be 28 metres between the proposed single storey 
extension and the storage area. This would be sufficient to prevent any overlooking issues. 
 
The canal forms the western boundary with the school with open land beyond.  There 
would be over 24 metres between the proposed extension and the canal, which would be 
sufficient and would not prevent any development from taking place. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the amenity 
of the neighbouring properties and would be in accordance with Policy EN1/2 and CF1/1 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Ecology - The main ecological issue is that the development will result in a loss of 
biodiversity at the site level.  
 
Bats - The mature trees proposed for removal were assessed for bat roosting potential and 
no evidence of bat roosting features was identified. GM Ecology Unit have no reason to 

Page 37



doubt the findings of the report. 
 
The biodiversity report also notes that external lighting could negatively impact on the 
retained trees and canal.  An isolux plan has been provided that demonstrates that lux 
levels will be at a level that are very unlikely to adversely effect bats or any other nocturnal 
wildlife. GM Ecology Unit states that no further information or measures are required.  
 
Other Protected Species - Previous surveys on the wider site have failed to find any 
evidence of protected species, with the new proposal restricted to a small area of amenity 
grassland. GM Ecology Unit are satisfied that all other protected species can be reasonably 
discounted.  
 
Nesting Birds - Trees would be removed on site, which would impact upon potential bird 
nesting habitat. All British birds nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are 
protected by Section 1 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, as amended. GM Ecology 
Unit have no objections, subject to the inclusion of an condition relating to nesting birds. 
 
Manchester-Bolton & Bury Canal SBI - GM Ecology Unit are aware of the comments from 
the Canal and River Trust and agree with their recommendations, which would also protect 
the ecological value of the SBI. 
 
Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment & Biodiversity Net Gain 
Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 states that the planning policies and decisions should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. The development will result in 
the loss of a small area of low ecological value grassland, some small recently planted trees 
and 2 mature trees that were retained as part of the previous development. The latter are 
the most significant features of ecological value and with regards to wildlife, the only likely 
adverse effect is upon nesting birds.   
 
It is not clear from the application, what mitigation measures would be provided, but the 
agent has confirmed that the trees would be replaced a 1 to 1 basis. GM Ecology Unit has 
no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to a biodiversity mitigation and 
enhancement plan, which shall include mitigation for the loss of bird nesting habitat through 
replanting and the provision of bird boxes on mature retained trees.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not cause harm to a protected species and 
would be in accordance with Policies EN6, EN6/3 and EN8/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Trees - The layout of the proposed car park has been amended since the pre-application 
enquiry. Originally the proposed car park would have resulted in the removal of 6 mature 
trees along the frontage. The proposed car park has been amended and would be accessed 
from 2 disabled parking bays within the existing car park, which has reduced the number of 
trees to be removed to 2. The remaining 6 trees along the frontage would be retained. As 
such, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
character of the area and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, CF1/1 and EN8 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
The proposed extension would result in the removal of 8 significantly smaller trees, which 
are located within the footprint of the proposed extension. The applicant has agreed to 
replace the trees on a like for like basis. Given that the trees on the perimeter of the site 
would be retained and the trees replaced, the proposed development would not have an 
adverse impact upon the character of the area. Therefore, the proposed development would 
be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, CF1/1 and EN8 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan. 

Page 38



 
Highways issues - The proposed car park extension would be accessed from the main 
access point, which forms a junction with School Street. There would be acceptable levels 
of visibility. The proposed development would provide an additional minibus drop off area 
and an additional 20 spaces and 2 accessible parking spaces. The Traffic Section has no 
objections to the proposed development. Therefore, the proposed development would not 
be detrimental to highway safety and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and 
CF1/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards for a school is 1.5 spaces per 
classroom, which equates to 10.5 spaces.  
 
Paragraph 6.38 of the SPD states that where facilities are specifically proposed for people 
who are disabled, such as dedicated schools, this is likely to justify a higher provision of 
disabled parking and facilities than those specified in table 2.  
 
The proposed development would provide 22 spaces, which includes 2 disabled spaces, 
which would be lost to create the access. However, the net gain would be 19 spaces due to 
the provision of a minibus drop off area. The school operates with a higher ratio of staff to 
pupils than a mainstream school and the proposed development would require an additional 
35 staff (full time equivalent). As such, the higher level of parking would be required. The 
application site is in a sustainable location and is within walking distance of the bus station 
and Metrolink station in the town centre. Given the circumstances outlined above, the level 
of parking would be appropriate in this instance. Therefore, the proposed development 
would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
SPD11.  
 
Response to objectors 

• Construction traffic is temporary and otherwise controlled through the Environment 
Protection Act. Construction traffic is not a material planning consideration and cannot 
be taken into consideration.  

• The issue of parking and traffic have been addressed in the report above.  
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during pre-application discussions to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 2128.32.1201 P3, 2128.32.1202 P3, 

Page 39



2128.32.1203 P3, 2128.32.1204 P3, 2128.32.1205 P4, 2128.32.1206 P3, 
2128.32.1301 P6, 2128.32.1302 P4, 2128.32.1401 P2, 2128.32.1402 P4, 
2128.32.1501 P5, 2128.32.1502 P2, 2128.32.171 P3, 2128.32.172 P3, WIL RDG 
XX 00 DR E 90100 P01, MIL RDG XX 00 DR E 90100 P02, A plan of tree 
constraints, Tree protection plan and the development shall not be carried out 
except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. The external finishing materials for the proposal hereby approved shall match 
those of the existing building. 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

5. Prior to occupation, electric vehicle charging points for 20% of the proposed 
parking spaces shall be provided and available for use. The electric vehicle charge 
points shall be 7KW as a minimum 
Reason. In accordance with the NPPF, to encourage the uptake of ultra-low 
emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable. To safeguard 
residential amenity, public health and quality of life pursuant to Policy EN7/1 - Air 
Quality of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

6. No development shall commence unless and until any remediation works and/or 
mitigation measures to address the shallow mine workings, as may be necessary, 
have been implemented on site in full in order to ensure that the site is safe and 
stable for the development proposed. 

Page 40



The intrusive site investigations and remedial works shall be carried out in 
accordance with authoritative UK guidance. 
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

7. Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken into beneficial use, a 
signed statement or declaration prepared by a suitably competent person 
confirming that the site is, or has been made, safe and stable for the approved 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  This document shall confirm the methods and findings of the intrusive 
site investigations and the completion of any remedial works and/or mitigation 
necessary to address the risks posed by the recorded mine entry.  
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

8. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
 

• Photographic dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways leading to 
and abutting the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required 
following construction of the development; 

• Access route for all construction vehicles to the site from the Key Route 
Network, including the need to prohibit the use of the residential estate roads 
to the north of the site; 

• Access point/arrangements for construction traffic from School Street, taking 
into consideration the need to maintain safe pedestrian/vehicular access to 
Millwood School, and all temporary works required to facilitate access for 
construction vehicles; 

• If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions, taking into consideration 
the need to maintain safe pedestrian access on the adopted highway and to 
the school; 

• The provision, where necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection 
measures on the highway; 

• A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the 
vicinity of the site and its access onto/along School Street; 

• Confirmation of hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 

• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 
of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle manoeuvres; 

• Parking on site or on land within the applicant’s control of operatives' and 
construction vehicles, retention of existing school parking and mini- bus drop of 
facilities together with facilities for the storage on site of construction materials; 

 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction 
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended 
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas 
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of 
vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials. 
Reason.  Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of 

Page 41



the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent 
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and 
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that 
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works 
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary 
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 

9. The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided before the 
development hereby approved is brought into use and the areas used for the 
manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all 
times. 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Policy CF1/1 - Location of New 
Community Facilities and Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

10. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated 
and made available for use to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority 
before the development hereby approved is brought into use and thereafter 
maintained at all times. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

11. No development shall commence unless and until surface water drainage 
proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme should be in accordance with the submitted Surface Water 
Sustainable Drainage Assessment and must be based on the hierarchy of 
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in 
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options 
for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support 
the chosen solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also 
be provided.  The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first 
occupation and thereafter maintained.  
Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the 
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact.  To promote sustainable 
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies 
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - 
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate 
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF. 

 

12. No development shall commence unless or until a Construction Environment 
Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include: 

• a plan showing the areas of storage of plant, fuel.chemicals and materials 
used in constructing the development; 

• Include the steps to be taken to prevent the discharge of silt-laden run-off, 
construction site drainage, materials or dust or any accidential spillages 
entering the waterway; 

• details of the environmental pollution incident emergency response. 

• details of the location of temporary stockpiles and the covering of these; 

• details of wheel washing facilities and containment measures; 

• include measures to locate, clear, remediate and permanently seal any 

Page 42



existing drains or culverts within the application site that may discharge to the 
canal. 

• details specifying how the waterway corridor and its users would be protected 
during the works and include any details of proposed protective fencing/netting 
to be erected to safeguard the waterway infrastructure during site 
clearance/construction. 

The approved CEMP shall be in place prior to works commencing and for the 
duration of the works. 
Reason.  In order to ensure that no harm is caused to the Manchester, Bolton and 
Bury canal pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment 
and EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan 
and National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing 
the natural environment. 

 

13. A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the development.  The contents of the 
plan should include 12 replacement native trees and shrub planting and the 
provision of bat bricks/tubes within the new development and bat and bird boxes.  
The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months 
from the date the building(s) is first occupied or within the first available tree 
planting season,; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely 
damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be 
replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required 
to be planted.   
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 
Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and 
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving 
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF. 

 

14. All trees to be retained on site shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837:2012 
"Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction". The development shall 
not commence unless and until the measures required by the British Standard are 
implemented and all measures required shall remain in situ until the development 
has been completed. 
Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant 
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree 
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

15. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in 
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist 
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 - 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

16. Prior to the commencement of development, a biodiversity mitigation and 
enhancement plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The content of the plan should include elements to mitigate 
for loss of trees and bird nesting habitat. The approved plan will be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 

Page 43



Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and 
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving 
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322 
 
 

Page 44



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 70195

Millwood Primary Special 
School, School Street

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

FB

2

111

1
9

50

Tank

Millwood SEN School

1
0
2

1
0

104

106

2
0

2
4

1
8

8

20

7

1

Chy
Tank

Pipeline

M
an

ch
es

te
r, 

B
ol

to
n 

an
d 

B
ur

y 
C

an
al

Allen's Green

SCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREETSCHOOL STREET A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E

Ps

78.0m
78.1m

79.4m

77
.7

m

5

213 4

Viewpoints

Page 45



70195 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 Page 46



70195 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 Page 47



70195 

Photo 5 

 

Page 48



78
.7

5

78.76

78
.7

7

78
.6

8

78
.6

9

78
.7

0

78.75

78.77

78.76

78.75

78
.6

0

78
.6

9

78
.7

7

78.78
78.65

78
.6

4

78.75
78.74

78.73 78.76
78.76

78
.5

3

78.61
78.52

78
.5

1
78

.5
8

78
.6

1

78
.7

3
78

.6
8

78.64 78.63 78.62 78.64
78.61

78
.7

3
78

.6
8

78
.6

2

78
.7

4
78

.6
7

78.61

78.48

78.4978.51
78.46

78.47

78.74

CL78.70 78.68
78.69

78.73

78.71

78.67

78.63

78.49

78.56

78.52

CL78.69

CL78.67

78.60

CL78.70

78.53

78.65

78.41

78.61

78.61

78.49

78.55

78.66

78.81

78.6678.5778.53

78.42

78
.5

0
78

.4
8

78
.5

2
78

.5
2

78.47

78
.5

1

78.55

78
.5

5

78
.7

0

78
.7

7

78
.7

7

78
.8

1

78
.8

5

78.99

78.83

78.58

78.63

78.61

78.66

78.66

78.53

78.54

78.67

78.67
78.71

78.76

78.86

78.90

78.94

78.59

78.52

78.50

78.48

78.61

78.65

78.70
78.6978.68

78.68
78.68

78.67

78.64

78.62

78.75

78
.7

4
78

.7
1

78
.7

0

78.69 78.69 78.7178.71

78
.7

0

78.71
78

.71

78.66

78.6878.6878.68
78.68

78.67

78.65

78.59

78.55

78.54

78.49
78.71

78.70

78
.7

4

78
.7

4

78.71
78.70

78
.7

6

78.73

78
.7

2

78.71
78.70

78.70

78
.6

8 78.68

78.57
78.59

78.58

78.70

78.64

78.55

78.73

78.71

78
.7

4

78.74
78.72

78
.7

1

78.69

CL78.59

78
.7

5
78

.6
7

78
.6

8

78
.7

7

78
.6

0
78

.6
0

78
.4

6

78
.4

8

78
.49

78
.49

78
.50

78
.5

0

78
.5

3

78.57

78.50

78.52

78.58

78.58

78.54

78.55

78.63

78.63

78.54

78
.51

78
.50

78.55

78
.55

78
.4

8

78
.4

1

78
.5

2
78

.5
1

78
.5

3

78.52

78.52

78.67

78.58

78.48

78.62

78
.4

9
78

.4
4

78
.4

6

78
.7

0

78.7578.74

78
.7

2

78
.7

2

78.74

78
.7

4

78
.74

78.73

78
.7

2

78.68
78.69

IL77.67

IL77.50

I\R
I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

I\R

GRASS TARMAC

TARMAC

SOFT SURFACE

SOFT SURFACE

SOFT SURFACE

TARMACGRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

TARMAC

TARMAC

TARMAC

TARMAC

TARMAC

GRASS

SOFT SURFACE

SOFT SURFACE

GRASS

PAVING
SHED

PAVING

D.C

D
.C

I\R

D
.C

D
.C

D.
C

D.
C

D.
C

D.C

D.C

D.C

D.
C

D
.C

PT

PT

ER

DR

IC

PT
PT

PT PT
PT

PT
PT

PT

PT
PT

ER
DR

PT
PT
PT

PT
PT

PT
PT

PT

PT

PT
PT

PT

DR CB

ER

IC

IC

IC

DR

G0.3

G0.3

G0.8

G0.8 G0.8

G0.4

ER

ER

DR

G0.8

G0.6

G0.8

G0.2

G0.4

G0.6

G0.6

G0.6

PTPT

PT

PT
PT

PT

ER

DR

DR

DR

DR

DR

ER

PT

ER

MH

CB

PT

G0.3

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

Outdoor
Play

Outdoor
Play

Outdoor
Play

'Tree Garden' Gate
(Access for Grounds Maintenance)

GateGate

Gate

Gate
Gate

Gate

Outdoor
Play

Outdoor
Play

Outdoor
Play

Gate

Gate

Gate

Gate

Outdoor
Play

Outdoor
Play

Gate
Gate

Gate
(Access for Grounds Maintenance)

EXISTING
SCHOOL

Low level fences
and gates to
match existing.

Re-Located
pergola from site
of new classroom
block..

New screen fence
to west boundary

Re-located
existing

Play
Store

Air
Source
Heat
Pump

compound

0 2 10m

1:100

4 86

client

project

drawing

Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP

Architects
Consulting Engineers
Quantity Surveyors

21 Silverwell Street
Bolton
BL1 1PR
t: 01204 525321

drawn by date

checked by date

dwg no

scale

revision by date

status

email@bghbolton.co.uk
www.bghbolton.co.uk

A0

hazard

ref

ref

rev

date

Hazard Identification

This drawing is copyright Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP and is not to be copied,
reproduced or re-distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written
permission of the originator.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage or
expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for its
intended purpose on this project.

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings,
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work.

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding
with any work.

ISG CONSTRUCTION LTD

MILLWOOD SCHOOL
NEW CLASSROOM BLOCK

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
SHEET 1

ST AUG 23

1:100

2128.32.1205 P4

PLANNING

P1 FIRST ISSUE AR 4.10.23

P3 PLANNING ISSUE AR 9.10.23

P4 ASHP COMPOUND ADDED AR 08.11..23

N
Tarmac
208 Sq.m

Soft Surfacing
405 Sq.m

Existing grass
areas retained
and reinstated

P
age 49



78.62

78.57

78
.6

6

78
.6

3

78
.6

5

78
.6

878
.7

0

78
.6

9

78
.7

1

78
.7

3

78
.4

9

78
.4

5

78
.3

9

78.49

78.55

78.45

78.45

78.49

78.50

78.49

78.45

78.43

78.38

78.41

CL78.32

78.30

78.34

78.36

78.39

CL78.38

78.07

78.25

78.37

78.39

78.44

78.41

78.38

78.41

78.37
78.41

78.40

78.32

78.36

78.28
78.32

78.28

78
.2

7

78
.2

5

78
.2

6

78.26

78.29

78.22
78.2078.16

78.14

78.21

78.26

78.31
78.22

78.19

78.23

78.23

78.22 78.20
78.21

78.24

78.15

78.10

78.08

78.11

78.14

78.09

78.0478.02

78.06

78.0778.08

78.13

78.1878.25

78.17

78.14

78.04

77.97

77.92

77.96

77.99

77.96
77.92

77.92
77.90

77.87
77.86

77
.8

8

77
.9

1

77
.88

77.87
77.88

77.91

77.97

77.98

77.98

78.03
78.07

78.12

78.16

78.18

78.21

78.22

78.25

78.27

78.32
78.39

78.40

78.32

78.28

78.27

78
.3

4

78
.3

3

78
.3

3

78.31
78.34

78.40

78
.3

7

78
.3

7

78
.3

7

78.36

78.38

78.32
78.29

78.28

78.24

78.32

78.37

78.41
78.34

78.27

78.32

78.32

78.32 78.29
78.31

78.34

78.26

78.20

78.17

78.22
78.22

78.17

78.12

78.12

78.18

78.17
78.18

78.22

78.28

78.33

78.27

78.23

78.14

78.07

78.02

78.06

78.07

78.05
78.02

78.02
78.00

77.97
77.95

78
.0

0

78
.0

3

77
.90

77.90
77.99

77.96

77.97

78.11

78.09

78.14

78.17

78.22

78.26

78.28

78.30

78.31

78.35

78.36

78.41
78.48

78.52

78.43

78.39

78.37

78.30

78.32

CL78.54

78.4178.4278.53

78.51

78.51

78.51

78.58
78.53

77.98

78.00

78.04

78.10

78.15

78.20

78.30

78.24

78.20

78.39

78.33
78.29

78.24

78.18

78.14

78.06

77.97

78.04

78.11

78.18

78.24

78.33

78.30

CL78.03
78.05

78.05

78.06

78.15

78.16

78.09

78.36

78.35

78.34

78.25

78.25
78.32

78.34

78.29

78.39

78.33

78.42

78.33

78.36

78
.4

1

78
.4

1

78
.4

1

78.40

78.32

78.20

78.17

78.16

78.23

78.19

78.17

78
.4

6

78.44

78.40

78.35

78.32

78
.3

4

78
.3

9

78.34

78.37

78.31

78.05

78.20

78.42

78.07
77.97

77.96

78.13

78.4378
.4

5

78
.3

9

78.35

78.39 78.31

78.41

78.34

78.50

78.58

78.52

78.57

78.50

78.57

78.52

78
.4

2

78.45

78
.4

5

78.43
78.39

78.37

78
.3

2

78
.2

8

78.21

78.22

78.27

78.30

78
.3

2

78
.3

6

78
.3

9 78.39 78.35 78.32 78.27 78.25

78.17
78.11

78.07

78
.0

3

78
.12

78.11

78.1478.1978.2378.3078.3678.3978.3878.3978.39

78.47

78.62

78.68

78.62

78.68

78.62

78.68

78.62 78
.5

4

78.56

78
.4

7

78.43
78.40

78.37

78
.4

3

78
.3

8

78.31

78.34

78.38

78.41

78
.4

4

78
.4

8

78
.5

1 78.50 78.47 78.39 78.35 78.31

78.26
78.21

78.17

78
.1

6

78
.2

4

78.12

78.2278.2578.2978.3378.3878.4578.4778.4878.4878.48

78.42

78.43

78.47

CL78.67

78.70

78.75

78
.7

5

78
.7

5

78
.77

78
.77

78.77

78.76

78.76

78.77

78
.7

6

78
.7

7

78.75

78.76

78
.7

5

78.74

78
.7

1

CL78.75

78.74

78.76

78.70
78.76

78.72

78.63

78.55

78.51

77.96
78.03 78.04

78.03

78.05

77.92

78.03

78.05

78.00
78.03

78.37

78.11

78.23
78.30 78.20

78.26
78.24

78.3278.3978.4378.4978.5278.4978.44

78.50 78.45 78.43 78.40

78.46 78.47 78.49
78.42 78.41

78.20

78
.1

4

78.06
78.03

78.05
78.08

78.15
78.2178.3378.3478.39

78.38

78.40 78.41 78.43 78.41 78.40 78.28 78.20 78.16
78.07

78.00

78.09
78.15

78.04

78.11
78.06

78
.0

2

78
.02

78.05 78.06
77.96

77.93 77.84 77.82

FL78.78

CL78.09

CL78.60

78
.4

1

78
.3

9

78
.3

9

78
.7

7

78.76

78.75

78.63

78.76

78.61

78
.7

4
78

.6
7

78.61 78.57 78
.5

2
78

.5
7

78
.7

4

CL78.73

CL78.72

78
.5

1

78
.4

9

78.44

78.48

78.49

78
.5

1

78.46
78.47

78.46

78
.4

7

78
.5

0

78.74

78.44

78.51

78.52 78.57

78
.5

8
78

.5
3

78
.7

4

78
.7

7

78
.7

4

CL78.72

CL78.73

78.75

78.72

78.71

CL78.71

78.68

78
.7

5

78
.7

6

IL78.09

STONE WALL

BRICK WALL

W\M

W\M
W\M

O/
H 

CA
NO

PY

PAVIORS
PAVING

PAVIORS

BUSHES

TARMAC

BI
KE

 S
TA

ND
S

PAVING

O/
H 

CA
NO

PY

GRASS

TAC

PAVIORS

PAVING

PAVIORS

TARMAC

PAVIORS

PAVING

PAVIORS

BUSHES

PAVING

PAVIORS

SCHOOL STREET

TAC
TAC

PAVING

PAVIORS

TARMAC

D.C

TARMAC

PAVING

BOL

BOL

BOL

LP

BOL

BOL

BOL

BOL

G0.2

G0.3

G0.3

G1.6 G2.6 G2.4

IC
MH

BOL

LP

BOL

BOL

BOL

BOL

IC

SAP

G0.3

G2.6
G1.6

G1.8
G1.8

STUMP

LP

MH

LP
SP

SP

G0.3

G0.3

LP
BIN

G0.4

G0.4

G0.4

LP
SP

SP

BOL

LP
NP

CB

LP

G0.3

G0.3

LP

PT

IC

ER

ER

DR

PT

PT

PT

PT

DR

PT

PT

ER

IC

PT

DR

ER

CTV

BT

PT

G

LP

G

LP

PT
PT

G

BH

MH

IC

I\R

I\R

TARMAC

SOFT SURFACE

PAVING

SHED

D.
C TE

M
P 

FE
N

C
E

DR

IC

IC

G2.2

PT
PT

ER

DR

G0.4

ER

DR

ER

IC

DR

IC

IC

DR

T1
A

T2
A

T3
B

T4
C

T6
B

Mini-Bus Drop-Off /
Pick-Up

Paviors

8.0m

4.0m

4.8m

6.0m

4.8m

3.6m

8.3m

6.0m

NEW BIKE
STANDS

 DISABLED
PARKING

Cycle
Stands

2.4m

3.5m

6.0m

 PROPOSED ADDITIONAL
PARKING

TREES TO BE
REMOVED

TREES TO BE
REMOVED

NEW MINI-BUS
PULL IN

Paviors

PaviorsPaviors

Paviors

0 2 10m

1:100

4 86

client

project

drawing

Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP

Architects
Consulting Engineers
Quantity Surveyors

21 Silverwell Street
Bolton
BL1 1PR
t: 01204 525321

drawn by date

checked by date

dwg no

scale

revision by date

status

email@bghbolton.co.uk
www.bghbolton.co.uk

A0

hazard

ref

ref

rev

date

Hazard Identification

This drawing is copyright Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP and is not to be copied,
reproduced or re-distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written
permission of the originator.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage or
expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for its
intended purpose on this project.

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings,
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work.

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding
with any work.

ISG CONSTRUCTION LTD

MILLWOOD SCHOOL
NEW CLASSROOM BLOCK

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
SHEET 2

ST AUG 23

1:100

2128.32.1206 P3

PLANNING

P1 FIRST ISSUE AR 04.10..23

P3 PLANNING ISSUE AR 10.10.23

N
Paviors
305 Sq.m

Tarmac
321 Sq.m

P
age 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
377900E

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
377950E

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
407050N

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
407100N

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
377900E

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
377950E

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
407050N

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
407100N

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
C



1401

W

1401N

1401

E

1401 S

110.03 m²
CIRC
G01

14.47 m²
COMMS

G02

20.91 m²
SOFT PLAY

G03

12.38 m²
LIGHT ROOM

G04

18.00 m²
SENSORY INTEGRATION

G05

17.60 m²
REBOUND ROOM

G06

6.33 m²
ST

G07

20.02 m²
LIBRARY

G08

4.06 m²
STORE

G09

20.02 m²
FOOD TECH

G10

7.78 m²
GROUP / SAFE

G14

6.20 m²
FOOD PREP

G15

19.80 m²
HYGIENE

G16

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G17

2.73 m²
ST

G18

62.33 m²
CLASSROOM 2

G19

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G20

6.20 m²
FOOD PREP

G21

7.78 m²
GROUP / SAFE

G22

11.31 m²
DEPUTY HEAD OFFICE

G23

18.39 m²
GENERAL OFFICE

G24

21.86 m²
STAFF

G25

3.43 m²
WC
G26

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G27

12.20 m²
DARK ROOM

G28

127.77 m²
MULTI-USE SPACE (HALL)

G29

19.00 m²
HALL STORE

G30

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G31

48.38 m²
CIRC
G32

3.30 m²
CL

G33
2.73 m²

ST
G34

2.73 m²
ST

G40

62.18 m²
CLASSROOM 3

G35

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G36

19.80 m²
HYGIENE

G37

6.20 m²
FOOD PREP

G38

7.78 m²
GROUP / SAFE

G39

70.16 m²
CIRC
G41

62.33 m²
CLASSROOM 5

G42

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G43

11.49 m²
HYGIENE

G44

6.20 m²
FOOD PREP

G45

7.78 m²
GROUP / SAFE

G46

62.33 m²
CLASSROOM 6

G47

7.78 m²
GROUP / SAFE

G48

6.20 m²
FOOD PREP

G49

19.80 m²
HYGIENE

G50

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G51

2.73 m²
ST

G52

62.33 m²
CLASSROOM 7

G53

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G54 6.20 m²
FOOD PREP

G55

7.78 m²
GROUP / SAFE

G56

62.33 m²
CLASSROOM 4

G57

7.78 m²
GROUP / SAFE

G60

6.20 m²
FOOD PREP

G59

3.30 m²
ACC. WC

G58

68.19 m²
CIRC
G11

62.33 m²
CLASSROOM 1

G12

21.14 m²
PLANT

G13

DG01

DG02

DG04

D
G

03

D
G

05

DG06

D
G

13

DG15

DG16

DG07DG08

DG17

DG09

DG18

D
G

14

DG19

D
G

20

D
G

22

D
G

10

D
G

25

D
G

26
D

G
27

D
G

28
D

G
29

D
G

24

DG23

DG31

DG11 DG12

D
G

34

D
G

32

D
G

33

DG35

D
G

39

D
G

48

D
G

38

D
G

47

D
G

37

D
G

46

DG40

D
G

36

D
G

45

DG42

D
G

43

D
G

50
D

G
51

D
G

52
D

G
53

DG49

DG44

D
G

54
D

G
60

D
G

59

DG55

DG61 DG62

DG56

DG57

DG63

DG58

DG64

D
G

30

ED02

E
D

03

E
D

01

E
D

04
E

D
05

ED06

ED07 ED08

ED09

E
D

10
E

D
11

ED12

ED13ED14

C
W

01

C
W

02
C

W
03

CW04 CW05

C
W

06
C

W
07

CW08CW09

W
01

W
02

W04 W05

W06 W07

W
09

W
10

W12W13

W
14

DG21

SG01

A
1501

A
1501

B
1501

B
1501

11
15

49
60

10
12

.5
14

52
.5

12
47

.5
13

40
12

47
.5

14
52

.5
10

12
.5

49
60

21
27

.5
19

22
.5

17
90

11
81

2.
5

67
40

70
87

.5
7772.5 665 1677.5 1135

562.5

1452.5 1247.5 1565 1247.5 1452.5 13060 1012.5 1452.5 1247.5 1340 1247.5 1452.5 1012.5 4960 1115 675 1135 2015 665 7772.5

11
15

49
60

10
12

.5
14

52
.5

12
47

.5
13

40
12

47
.5

14
52

.5
10

12
.5

49
60

11
15

70
87

.5
67

40
70

87
.5

20
91

5

11812.5 21037.5 6740 7087.5 12262.5

58940

675 4960 675 1452.5 1247.5 1340 1247.5 1452.5 1012.5 4960 1115 675 1135 2015 665 7772.5

6310 6740 7087.5 12262.5

32400

56
2.

5
56

2.
5

1125

1125

11
25

11
25

11
25

11
25

12
47

.5
18

00

12477.5 1135 675

EXISTING BUILDING

C
O

A
TS

 / 
S

TO
R

A
G

E
C

O
A

TS
 / 

S
TO

R
A

G
E

COATS / STORAGE

C
O

A
TS

 / 
S

TO
R

A
G

E
C

O
A

TS
 / 

S
TO

R
A

G
E

RL RL RL

RLRLRLRLRLRL

RL

3 Nr WIND CATCHERS

C
1501

C
1501

W08

W11

W03

DG41

D
1502

D
1502

E
1502

E
1502

RL

3510x1910x1000mm 

TRAMPOLINE PIT

This drawing is © Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP and is not to be copied, 
reproduced or re-distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written 
permission of the originator.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepencies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. 

status

Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP 

dwg no rev

scale

checked by

drawn by date

date

A1

drawing

project

client

21 Silverwell Street
Bolton
BL1 1PR
t: 01204 525321
email@bghbolton.co.uk
www.bghbolton.co.ukQuantity Surveyors

Consulting Engineers
Architects

Hazard Identification

ref hazard date

!

P6

1 : 100

PLANNING

1301

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

2128.32.

ST

AR

AUG 2023

OCT 2023

MILLWOOD SCHOOL NEW
CLASSROOM BLOCK

ISG CONSTRUCTION LTD

0

SCALE  1 : 

2 4 6

100

ref   revision by date

P3 PLANNING ISSUE AR 09.10.23

P4 ROOM NUMBERS ADDED. DOOR, WINDOW
AND CW REFERENCES ADDED

AC 19.10.23

P5 WINDOWS ADDED TO G19, 47 & 53. DOOR
SWING AMENDED IN GO5 & 06

AC 27.10.23

P6 ROOFLIGHT ADDED TO STAFF ROOM G25 AC 08.11.23

1 : 100

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

ROOM AREA SCHEDULE

ROOM
NUMBER

ROOM NAME AREA

G01 CIRC 110.03 m²

G02 COMMS 14.47 m²

G03 SOFT PLAY 20.91 m²

G04 LIGHT ROOM 12.38 m²

G05 SENSORY INTEGRATION 18.00 m²

G06 REBOUND ROOM 17.60 m²

G07 ST 6.33 m²

G08 LIBRARY 20.02 m²

G09 STORE 4.06 m²

G10 FOOD TECH 20.02 m²

G11 CIRC 68.19 m²

G12 CLASSROOM 1 62.33 m²

G13 PLANT 21.14 m²

G14 GROUP / SAFE 7.78 m²

G15 FOOD PREP 6.20 m²

G16 HYGIENE 19.80 m²

G17 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G18 ST 2.73 m²

G19 CLASSROOM 2 62.33 m²

G20 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G21 FOOD PREP 6.20 m²

G22 GROUP / SAFE 7.78 m²

G23 DEPUTY HEAD OFFICE 11.31 m²

G24 GENERAL OFFICE 18.39 m²

G25 STAFF 21.86 m²

G26 WC 3.43 m²

G27 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G28 DARK ROOM 12.20 m²

G29 MULTI-USE SPACE (HALL) 127.77 m²

G30 HALL STORE 19.00 m²

ROOM AREA SCHEDULE

ROOM
NUMBER

ROOM NAME AREA

G31 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G32 CIRC 48.38 m²

G33 CL 3.30 m²

G34 ST 2.73 m²

G35 CLASSROOM 3 62.18 m²

G36 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G37 HYGIENE 19.80 m²

G38 FOOD PREP 6.20 m²

G39 GROUP / SAFE 7.78 m²

G40 ST 2.73 m²

G41 CIRC 70.16 m²

G42 CLASSROOM 5 62.33 m²

G43 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G44 HYGIENE 11.49 m²

G45 FOOD PREP 6.20 m²

G46 GROUP / SAFE 7.78 m²

G47 CLASSROOM 6 62.33 m²

G48 GROUP / SAFE 7.78 m²

G49 FOOD PREP 6.20 m²

G50 HYGIENE 19.80 m²

G51 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G52 ST 2.73 m²

G53 CLASSROOM 7 62.33 m²

G54 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G55 FOOD PREP 6.20 m²

G56 GROUP / SAFE 7.78 m²

G57 CLASSROOM 4 62.33 m²

G58 ACC. WC 3.30 m²

G59 FOOD PREP 6.20 m²

G60 GROUP / SAFE 7.78 m²

1314.43 m²

FLOOR AREAS

NETT INTERNAL FLOOR AREA: 1312.85m²

GROSS INTERNAL FLOOR AREA: 1379.08m²

GROSS EXTERNAL AREA: 1458.85m²

P
age 51



LEVEL 00

0.000 m
ED01CW01 W14

L17

CW07 ED11 W10 W09

L12 L11

CW06 ED101A1B2 1A3 4

8

1B 1A2 1B

7

45
0

27
00

45
0

75
0

12
00

90
0

45
0

75
0

12
00

90
0

33
00

LEVEL 00

0.000 m
ED02

L02 L01 L18

CW09 ED14 W13 W12

L15 L14

CW08 ED13 ED12

L13

1A 1B 2 1A3 4 3 1B 1A

5 68 9

1B 1B W11

45
0

67
5

21
0027

75

45
0

75
0

12
00

90
0

33
00

45
0

75
0

21
00

12
00

90
0

LEVEL 00

0.000 m
ED05CW03 W02

L04 L03

W01 ED04CW02 ED031A 1B 2 3

7

1A

8

1B 1B
LINE OF SCHOOL STREET FOOTPATH IN FOREGROUND

33
00

45
0

75
0

12
00

90
0

21
00

LEVEL 00

0.000 m

90
0

12
00

75
0

45
0

90
0

12
00

75
0

45
0

ED09 ED08CW05

L10 L09 L08

W07 W06 ED07CW04 W05 W04

L07 L06 L05

ED06W081A 1B 2 1A 3 2 4 3 1B1A 1A

5 68 9

10

90
0

12
00

21
00

75
0

45
0

33
00

30
00

90
0

12
00

W03

This drawing is © Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP and is not to be copied, 
reproduced or re-distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written 
permission of the originator.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepencies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. 

status

Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP 

dwg no rev

scale

checked by

drawn by date

date

A1

drawing

project

client

21 Silverwell Street
Bolton
BL1 1PR
t: 01204 525321
email@bghbolton.co.uk
www.bghbolton.co.ukQuantity Surveyors

Consulting Engineers
Architects

Hazard Identification

ref hazard date

!

P5

1 : 100

PLANNING

1401

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

2128.32.

ST

AR

AUG 2023

OCT 2023

MILLWOOD SCHOOL NEW
CLASSROOM BLOCK

ISG CONSTRUCTION LTD

0

SCALE  1 : 

2 4 6

100

ELEVATION MATERIAL LEGEND
REF DESCRIPTION PRODUCT REF / COLOUR

1A BRICKWORK TYPE A TBA

1B BRICKWORK TYPE B TBA

2 COLOUR COATED ALUMINIUM FRAMED / DOUBLE GLAZED CURTAIN WALLING TBA

3 COLOUR COATED ALUMINIUM FRAMED / DOUBLE GLAZED DOORS TBA

4 COLOUR COATED ALUMINIUM FRAMED / DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS TBA

5 COLOUR COATED PROFILED METAL ROOF SYSTEM TBA

6 COLOUR COATED PRESSED METAL GUTTERS TBA

7 COLOUR COATED PRESSED METAL FASCIAS & VERGES TBA

8 CLADDING TBA

9 SUNPIPE / SKYLIGHT TBA

10 WINDCATCHER WITH INTEGRAL SUN PIPE TBA

ref   revision by date

P1 FIRST ISSUE AR 03.10.23

P2 SECOND ISSUE AR 04.10.23

P3 PLANNING ISSUE AR 09.10.23

P4 SMALL WINDOWS ADDED TO CORNER
CLASSROOMS. LOUVRES ADDED

AC 31.10.23

P5 ROOFLIGHT ADDED TO STAFF ROOM G25 AC 08.11.23

1 : 100

PROPOSED NORTH FACING ELEVATION

1 : 100

PROPOSED EAST FACING ELEVATION

1 : 100

PROPOSED SOUTH FACING ELEVATION

1 : 100

PROPOSED WEST FACING ELEVATION

EXISTING PROPOSED LINK CORRIDOR PROPOSED EXTENSION

EXISTING

PROPOSED LINK PROPOSED EXTENSION EXISTING SCHOOL BUILDING

PROPOSED EXTENSION

PROPOSED LINK CORRIDOR PROPOSED EXTENSIONPROPOSED EXTENSION

P
age 52



SOUTH ELEVATION  (SHOWING LINE OF SCHOOL STREET FOOTPATH AND CANAL) 1:200

PROPOSED EXTENSION EXISTING SCHOOL BUILDING

SOUTH ELEVATION  (SHOWING LINE OF SCHOOL STREET FOOTPATH AND CANAL) 1:100

PROPOSED EXTENSION EXISTING SCHOOL BUILDING

BOUNDARY FENCE (EXISTING)CANAL SCHOOL STREET FOOTPATH

EXISTING PERIMETER FENCE

0 20m

1:200

105 15

client

project

drawing

Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP

Architects
Consulting Engineers
Quantity Surveyors

21 Silverwell Street
Bolton
BL1 1PR
t: 01204 525321

drawn by date

checked by date

dwg no

scale

revision by date

status

email@bghbolton.co.uk
www.bghbol ton.co.uk

A1

This drawing is ©Bradshaw Gass & Hope LLP and is not to be copied,
reproduced or re-distributed either in whole or in part without the prior
written permission of the originator.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for
its intended purpose on this project.

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings,
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work.

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding
with any work.

Hazard Identification
hazard

ref

ref

rev

date

ISG CONSTRUCTION LTD

MILLWOOD SCHOOL
NEW CLASSROOM BLOCK

PROPOSED STREET ELEVATION
TO SCHOOL STREET

AGR AUG 23

1:100 / 1:200

2128.32.1402 P4

PLANNING

P3 PLANNING ISSUE AGR 09.10.23

P4 PROPOSED ELEVATION UPDATED AC 08.11.23

THIS DRAWING SHOWS THE NEW CLASSROOM BLOCK IN THE CONTEXT OF THE EXISTING SCHOOL

READ WITH DRAWING 2128.32.1401 FOR MATERIALS /FINISHES

0 2 10m

1:100

4 86

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 
Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth Item   03 

 
Applicant: Mr Karl Rawstron 
 
Location: Land between 18 & 24 Bradley Fold Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5QD 

 
Proposal: Erection of 1 no. dwelling 
 
Application Ref:   68667/Full Target Date:  26/12/2022 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application site is a vacant cleared site and was last in use as a garage colony. The 
garages were demolished in 2018. Access to the site is via an unadopted unmade road, 
which leads to the rear of the terraced row on Bradley Fold Road, beyond which is a Grade 
II listed church and its grounds. The application site is adjacent to, but not within the 
Ainsworth Conservation Area. 
 
There are residential properties to the north, south and east of the site. The Grade II listed 
church and associated graveyard are located to the west. 
 
The proposed development involves the erection of a detached dwelling on the land 
between Nos 18 and 24 Bradley Fold Road. The proposed dwelling would be two storeys in 
height and would be constructed from brick with concrete roof tiles. The proposed 
development would be accessed from an unadopted access to the south of the proposed 
dwelling with parking for 1 vehicle at the rear. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
59997 - Outline - 1 no detached dwelling with details of access, layout and scale at garage 
site at land between 18 & 24 Bradley Fold Road, Ainsworth. Approved with conditions - 27 
July 2016. 
 
62431 - Prior notification of proposed demolition of garage block at garage site at land 
between 18 & 24 Bradley Fold Road, Ainsworth. Prior approval required and granted - 13 
March 2018 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 3 November 2022 and a 
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 10 November 2022. Site notices were 
posted on 14 November 2022. 
 
5 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• Bradley Fold is a busy road with parking issues on Fridays and Saturdays due to the 
nearby pub and Italian restaurant. This land is used as unofficial parking and particularly 
for commercial vehicles. These vehicles would need to use the street, marking the 
parking issue worse 

• Access to the two parking spaces would be extremely difficult and potentially dangerous 
due to increased parking on street and the continued problem with speeding vehicles. 

• The building works would cause disruption to a congested area for a considerable 
period of time. 

• The property does not appear to be in keeping with the visual appearance of the rest of 

Page 55



the street or the nature of property. The majority of properties are red Accrington brick 
and slate, however although the drawing say "red brick", it is to be rendered in white 
render. Being in a conservation area, consideration should be given to this. 

• The proposal has 2 parking spaces however a four bed house is likely to result in more 
than two vehicles being associated with the property. There is already an issue with 
street parking on Bradley Fold Road in the vicinity of this proposal in the evening, and 
currently about 5 or 6 cars use this land for parking in an evening. I accept that this land 
is not designated parking however, my point is that, the vehicles currently using this land 
will have to park back on the street and if there is an additional property adding to the 
issue with occupants and/or visitors cars, the parking situation will become untenable. 

• Following our recent committee meeting, I have asked to raise our concerns about this 
development. We do support the provision of a new dwelling on this site, but are 
concerned about the limited gap between this and No 18, which will make any 
maintenance work near impossible on either building.  

• We would also note that the access for church maintenance/grave digger is also limited, 
so the boundary fence may also be a problem. 

• I am the Vicar of Christ Church Ainsworth. The Church has a right of way from Bradley 
Fold Road to the rear gate of our churchyard. This is along the unmade access road that 
runs through the parcel of land, alongside the site of the proposed development. 

• The churchyard is still in use as a burial site, so unimpeded access to the churchyard 
via the rear gate is required by visitors to the churchyard, particularly the bereaved 
visiting graves, gravediggers, who need to bring small mechanical diggers and other 
plant onto site to prepare for burials and monumental masons, who need to erect 
headstones. 

• Environmental Services also require access to empty the Churchyard refuse bins. 

• In view of the forgoing, we require access along this route to be kept free from 
impediment throughout the development of the proposed detached dwelling. I should be 
grateful if this could be made a condition of planning permission. 

 
The neighbouring properties were notified of revised plans on 7 July 2023. 
 
4 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• The properties on Bradley Fold Road next to this land require access to the rear of our 
properties. This is along the unmade access road that runs alongside the site of the 
proposed development. 

• Bradley Fold Road is a very busy road and has very little room for cars to be parked. 
Adding another property will only impede this already problematic issue the residents 
face themselves when pub goers park outside our houses. 

• Another dwelling will cause overcrowding of the site. 

• I have seen comments related to the issue of parking, but note that the application 
includes the facility for off-road parking. 

• I know that residents are affected by custom at the local pub and restaurant with visitors 
parking on the road. Would a suitable alternative be to introduce resident-only parking in 
that area?  

• The site has for a long time been an eyesore, and the development of a new property 
would be an improvement and obviously cater for the need for additional housing in the 
area. 

• This piece of land has been fenced off and the hardstanding removed. Everyone now 
has to park on Bradley Fold Road 

• Loss of an open space. 

• Access to the church yard. 

• A stupid place to build a house as it will cause chaos. 
 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.  

Page 56



 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - Comments to be reported in the Supplementary Report. 
Drainage Section -  No response. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
Waste Management - No response. 
Conservation Officer - No objections in principle. Further comments to be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to inclusion of informatives relating to drainage. 
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of condition relating to a bat/bird 
box. 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Awaiting confirmation that the agent agrees with the pre-start 
conditions. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN2 Conservation and Listed Buildings 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
EN2/3 Listed Buildings 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
OL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
SPD8 DC Policy Guidance Note 8 - New Buildings in the Green Belt 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Green Belt - Paragraphs 147 and 148 state that inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt is by definition, harmful and should not be approved except in Very Special 
Circumstances (VSC). Planning Authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to 
any harm in the Green Belt.  VSC will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt 
by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly 
outweighed by other considerations.   
 

Page 57



Paragraph 149 of the NPPF states that the construction of new buildings would be 
inappropriate in the Green Belt. Exceptions to this are: 
 
a. buildings for agriculture and forestry; 
b. the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a 

change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial grounds and 
allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not 
conflict with the purposes of including land within it; 

c. the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in 
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building; 

d. the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not 
materially larger than the one it replaces; 

e. limited infilling in villages; 
f. limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the 

development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and 
g. limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land, 

whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would: 

•  not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing 
development; or 

• not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the 
development would re-use previously developed land and contribute to meeting an 
identified affordable housing need within the area of the local planning authority. 

 
Policy OL1/2 states that the construction of new buildings in the Green Belt is inappropriate 
development unless -  

• for agriculture and forestry,  

• essential facilities for outdoor sports and recreation, 

• limited extension, alteration or replacement dwelling provided it would not result in 
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original dwelling or not 
materially larger than the one it is to replace; 

• limited infilling in existing villages as set out under Policy OL1/3. 
 
Policy OL1/3 states in all named villages which lie within the Green Belt, limited infill 
development may be permitted, provided it is in scale with the village and would not 
adversely affect the character of surroundings. 
 
A Green Belt statement was submitted with the application, which identifies the site is 
located in the Green Belt and that outline consent has been granted several years ago. The 
Green Belt statement does not justify why this site is an exception in the Green Belt. 
However, based on the planning history, this site would be considered as an infill plot within 
a named village. Therefore, the proposed development would be acceptable in principle and 
would be in accordance with Policies OL1/2 and OL1/3 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Principle - Housing - The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be treated 
as a material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning 
authorities to boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and 
long term. The Framework maintains the emphasis on identifying a rolling five year supply 
of deliverable housing land.  
 
Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply 
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that 
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a 
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of 

Page 58



housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as 
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g. 
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring 
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing 
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential developments.   
 
The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is 
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against 
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially 
below (less than 75%) of the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be 
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the 
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and 
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential development. 
 
Therefore, in relation to the proposed dwelling, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning 
Policy Framework states that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the 
policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, planning 
permission should be granted unless: 
i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular 
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
However, the application site is located in the Green Belt and the tilted balance does not 
apply. 
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
The site is located within the urban boundary and there are residential properties to the 
north, south and east and the church and associated graveyard to the west. The proposed 
development would not conflict with the surrounding land uses and would be located in a 
sustainable location with regard to public transport and services. The site contained garages 
until their demolition and as such, would be a brownfield site. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Places for Everyone - The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) is 
a joint plan covering nine of the ten Greater Manchester districts, including Bury, and is 
intended to provide the overarching framework to strategically manage growth across the 
boroughs. PfE was published in August 2021 and subsequently submitted to the Secretary 
of State in February 2022. Inspectors have been appointed to carry out an independent 
examination of the Plan with the hearing sessions commencing in November 2022 and were 
concluding in July 2023. The examination of the plan is on-going. 
 
Whilst PfE cannot be given full weight until it is adopted, its advanced stage of preparation 
means that it is now considered reasonable that the Plan (as proposed to be modified) 
should be given weight in the decision-making process in line with paragraph 48 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
Consequently, the principle of this application has been considered against the Plan (as 
proposed to be modified). However, the principle of this proposal does not give rise to any 

Page 59



conflict with PfE policies. 
 
Heritage, design and layout - The application site is located outside of, but adjacent to the 
Conservation Area. As such, it is necessary to consider the proposal in terms of the Town 
and Country Planning Listed Building and Conservation Act. In this regard proposals should 
either preserve or enhance the Conservation Area and in terms of policy consideration 
National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 189-202 and Policies EN2/1 - Character of 
Conservation Areas and EN2/2 - Conservation Area Control of the Unitary Development 
Plan. 
 
The site contained garages, which have been demolished a number of years ago. The site 
has been cleared, leaving a hardstanding. As such, the application site would have a 
negative impact upon the character and setting of the Conservation Area.  
 
The proposed development would provide a detached dwelling, which would be two storeys 
in height. The eaves and ridge height of the proposed dwelling would match the height of 
the adjacent terraced row of dwellings that are located within the Conservation Area, which 
would be acceptable. The proposed dwelling has greatly simplified its appearance from the 
original submission to a much simpler form such that the main elevations would be of a 
similar design to the adjacent terraced dwellings. The proposed dwelling would be 
constructed from red brick and concrete tiles. Whilst brick would match the adjacent 
properties, it is considered that slates should be used, given that the proposed development 
is located adjacent to the Conservation Area. This would be secured by a condition. As 
such, the proposed development would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene and 
would make a positive contribution to the character and setting of the Conservation Area. 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies H2/1, H2/2, 
EN1/2, EN2/1 and EN2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Impact upon surrounding area - The proposed dwelling would have a rear garden, which 
would provide an acceptable level of private amenity space for a 3 bed dwelling. There 
would be space for bin storage at the side of the dwelling.  
 
The proposed boundary treatment would be a brick boundary wall along the front, side and 
rear of varying heights from 0.75 metres to 1.5 metres in height. The proposed development 
would be appropriate in terms of the impact upon the Conservation Area. A 1 metre high 
timber fence would be provided adjacent to the parking space, which would be acceptable.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies H2/1, H2/2, 
EN1/2, EN2/1 and EN2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and would be relevant in this case. 
 
There would be 8.5 metres from the proposed dwelling to the rear boundary, which would 
be in excess of the 7 metre aspect standard required.  
 
There would be 16 metres between the proposed dwelling and the properties on the 
opposite side of Bradley Fold Road. This relationship would be the same as the existing 
relationship between the existing terraced row of properties on the street. As such, the 
proposed development would be no worse than the existing relationships between dwellings 
and would not have a significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring 
properties.  
 
There would be non-habitable windows (landing and bathroom) in the gable elevations and 
as such, would not have an adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring residents.  

Page 60



Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties.  
 
Ecology - The main ecological issues relate to bats, nesting birds and landscaping. 
 
Bats - A bat assessment has been submitted and a further report was submitted during the 
application process. The surveys confirm that the hanging tiles on the adjacent property 
have negligible potential for bats. GM Ecology Unit have no objections to the proposal. 
 
Nesting birds - There is a low risk of species, such as a house sparrow nesting under the 
eaves of the adjacent property. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion 
of an informative relating to nesting birds. 
 
Contributing to and enhancing the natural environment - Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 
states that the planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment. There would be no loss of vegetated habitat as a result of the 
development as the site contains a hardstanding. However, GM Ecology Unit recommend 
that a bat/bird box is included within the development as mitigation/enhancement.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon a protected 
species and would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from an unadopted 
access to the south of the proposed dwelling with parking for 1 vehicle at the rear. The 
existing access would be 5.5 metres in width, which would be wide enough for 2 vehicles to 
pass and there would be acceptable levels of visibility at the junction with Bradley Fold 
Road. A parking space would be provided at the rear of the site and the fencing to the west 
would be lowered to 1 metre in height to ensure visibility would be maintained with the 
access track that runs along the rear of Nos 2 - 18 Bradley Fold Road. Pedestrian access 
would be taken from the footpath on Bradley Fold Road and the bins would be stored at the 
side of the proposed dwelling. The scheme comprising a single dwelling would not generate 
any noticeable uplift in traffic generation in response to comments of the busy nature of this 
particular highway. The Traffic Section has no objections in principle and further comments 
will be reported in the Supplementary Report.  
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces for a 3 bedroom 
dwelling would be 2 spaces.  
 
The proposed development would provide 1 space at the rear of the site. The proposed 
development is located within walking distance of Ainsworth village, where there is good 
access to public transport. Therefore, the level of parking provision would be acceptable in 
this instance and would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and SPD 11.  
 
Response to objectors 

• The issues relating to design, impact upon the conservation area, layout and parking 
have been addressed in the report above.  

• Revised plans were submitted, which has reduced the size of the proposed dwelling to 3 
bedrooms. 

• The proposed development would provide parking for the proposed dwelling and the 
proposed layout has been amended to ensure that the parking is accessible. 

• The impact of building works and the issues of maintenance are not a material planning 
consideration and cannot be taken into consideration. 

Page 61



• The access to the churchyard would be a private matter. However, the proposed 
development would not impede access to the grave yard or the unmade access road 
that runs along the back of the properties on Bradley Fold Road.  

 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location plan, P01C, P02B, P03A, 
P04E, P05C and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance 
with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. Notwithstanding the described materials within the application, details/samples of 
the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations, together with details of 
their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced. 
Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the construction of the 
development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 

4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 62



Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 
 

5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

6. Bat and bird boxes shall be installed in the dwelling hereby approved prior to first 
occupation. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

7. No development shall commence unless and until surface water drainage 
proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme should be in accordance with the submitted Surface Water 
Sustainable Drainage Assessment and must be based on the hierarchy of 
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in 
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options 
for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support 
the chosen solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also 
be provided.  The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first 
occupation and thereafter maintained.  
Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the 
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact.  To promote sustainable 
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies 
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - 
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate 
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF. 

 

8. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated 
and made available for use prior to the dwelling hereby approved being brought 
into use. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

9. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
 

• Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 

• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 
of the site; 

• Parking on site of operatives' and demolition/construction vehicles together 
with storage on site of demolition/construction materials; 

Page 63



• Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not carried on 
the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and measures to 
minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations 

 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction 
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended 
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas 
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of 
vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials. 
Reason.  Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of 
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent 
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and 
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that 
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works 
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary 
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322 
 
 

Page 64



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 68667

Land between 18 & 24 
Bradley Fold Road Radcliffe

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

3
1

8
2

8

4
0

2

1
8

1
0

20

1
5

2
4

1
7

1
8

1

4
2

2

C
hrist

C
hurch

Ainsworth

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOMFIELD CLOSE

BROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVEBROOKFIELD AVE

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y
B

R
A

D
L

E
Y

B
R

A
D

L
E

Y

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E
C

L
O

S
E

C
L

O
S

E

1
6
4
.9

m

2
1

3

Page 65



68667 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2  

 Page 66



68667 

Photo 3 

 

Page 67



P
age 68



P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71



P
age 72



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��
������������������������

�
�
��	�

�
����������������� �

�
�������	�

�
�����
��������������

�
�����������	�

�
��
������� ����������
�
�������

�
����
����������	�

�
�
 ����
����

� �

�
�!��������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
������
����"��
���	�

#$%&
'(')*
%&
+%,$%-
,$)
'./0%1
234(%-




�
����
�!	�

�
#$)
*)'3*,
0%&,&5

6)1)-,
2)0)7(,)2
'0(--%-7
2)1%&%3-&
&%-1)
,$)
0(&,
899�

�
��������:�
�������������������



#$)
9344%,,))
%&
*)1344)-2)2
,3
,$)
-3,)
,$)
*)'3*,

(-2
('')-2%1)&


�
������
�����	�

�

�
�;�<;�=>��
?�@"�;A?�B�
��=��C;�D	�



E3
,$)
'*3'3&(0&
(113*2
+%,$
,$)
830%1F

G*(4)+3*HI

 J)&
 
 


�>=>���K>��B�>L����M���NN?���	�
�?K=K�?=A���<A?�=>?;K@�=KO��?@D�
�;K@?O��=>?;K@	�



PQ)1.,%R)
E%*)1,3*
3S
6)&3.*1)&
,3
(2R%&)

*)7(*2%-7
*%&H
4(-(7)4)-,


�
�>=>���K>��B��T��U>?V���?���>;��
;N���@;U���@	�

�
WXY

�

�
�ZU=A?>B"�?V��@?>B�?�<A?�=>?;K@	�



W3
 




�
�;K@?O���O��B��;K?>;�?K[��NN?���	�



\]̂

�
�

�
_=�O@�
NN��>�O	�

�
Y00
0%&,)2


�
���U>?KB��K>���@>	�
�

�
WXY


�


[�KO=�
�>���

`

������������������
a


Page 73

Agenda Item 5



���������	�
����

 
 ������
��




�����������������
������ ���!��"��#��$�

%��&�

����������
'�&(���������

)��"�'�&(��#� *���+��#�

�
�

� � �

������+,��-&&������ �-&&������ �-�+��.� �



�


 
 



 � � �

�
/01
 2�����
3��

�
%��#��#���&-+��.,���$-����-�����*.�++�+ ��-+��-.��-&&������-������"�.� ���"�$.�++�+ �
"���#�-+#�&�"��(,�����-������#�-�������-�+��.4��
�
501
 �
��63��
�


�
%�����������&�(��+-��"4

�
�

�
6789
:;
2<=>?@:ABC
	<DE@8�F�:BE

�
�:B9<=9
�E9<7G8�F

�
H���"�'��+-I�J��"�-��H���.-$&�+��'�+� �&�+���
*.�++�+ ��������#I�H�$���&�+���-��K�#-����#��+"�K� �.���-+�
L�M+-N#.�,�*.����
O��,�O!P�Q�R�


�EG�
1/S/
5TU
T5V/

�W<7G�
C0W<@B:XYA@Z0?:[0A>




\
]

Page 74



����������������	�
����
���
���������
�
��	
���
�
���

�
	�

��� ���������������� �����������

������� !�"#$%&�

'(()*+,�-./0�1*23./.*24�567897959:�

;),</.*2�*=�>�2,-�4.2?@,�4/*),A�;B�C*3D@>)�D2./�,E/,24.*2�

F>.)=.,@3�G,2,)>@�H*4(./>@I�J*<03>@,�K@3�J*>3I�LD)AI�LMN�6OB�
FPM�Q��R�ST�
U�VNW8:�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

'(()*+,�-./0�1*23./.*24�867887959:�

Z.2?@,�4/*),A�),>)�>23�4.3,�,E/,24.*24�

98�[.@4*2�Z/),,/I�\.C0*@,I�LD)AI�LMN�6;F�
FPM�Q��R�ST�
U�655VV�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

\).*)�'(()*+>@�]*/�J,̂D.),3�_�;E/,24.*2�8:7887959:�

\).*)�>(()*+>@�=*)�()*(*4,3�4.2?@,�4/*),A�),>)�,E/,24.*2�

:6�;>4/�Z/),,/I�LD)AI�LMN�5J̀ �
G\B;�Q��R�ST�
U�65898�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

'(()*+,�-./0�1*23./.*24�587897959:�

Z.2?@,�4/*),A�),>)�,E/,24.*2�-./0�=@>/�)**=�>23�9�2*a�-.23*-4�>b*+,�>23�>33./.*2�*=�=.)4/�=@**)�
-.23*-�/*�/0,�=)*2/�,@,+>/.*2�

9:�K)C)*3�Z/),,/I�\.C0*@,I�LD)AI�LMN�6HF�
FPM�Q��R�ST�
U�658VW�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

\).*)�'(()*+>@�]*/�J,̂D.),3�_�;E/,24.*2�9:7887959:�

Z.2?@,�Z/*),A�J,>)�;E/,24.*2�

99�[.@4*2�Z/),,/I�\.C0*@,I�LD)AI�LMN�6;F�
G\B;�Q��R�ST�
U�65868�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

������� !�c�dee� fgh�"#$%&�

'(()*+,�-./0�1*23./.*24�8W7887959:�

10>2?,�*=�D4,�=)*C�<@Db�/*�4-,,/�C>2D=></D).2?�D2./�i1@>44�;i?ji...j�k23D4/).>@�()*<,44,4j�-./0�
,E/)></.*2�4A4/,C�

Z>@.4bD)A�1*24,)+>/.+,�1@DbI�L>3?,)�Z/),,/I�LD)AI�LMN�V'B�
FPM�Q��R�ST�
U�VN5lV�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

J,=D4,3�9m7887959:�

;),</.*2�*=�8�2*a�3,/><0,3�3-,@@.2?�

M>23�>3n><,2/�/*�9V�[0,>/=.,@3�1@*4,I�LD)AI�LMN�V̀ B�
FPM�Q��R�ST�
U�VNlNN�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

'(()*+,�-./0�1*23./.*24�8:7887959:�

Z.2?@,�4/*),A�,E/,24.*2�>/�),>)�

88�Z*D/0=.,@3�'+,2D,I�LD)AI�LMN�WHZ�
FPM�Q��R�ST�
U�6559m�Q������	�
��X
RU�

Y
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

opqrsqsost�u#vwxrxyzxro� Page 75



����������	
����
�	����������������

�����	����������
�	��������������
���������������������������������������
�������� ������
���������
 �	���������������������!�����	�������"�����
��	��������	���	��������������#�����
�
�����	��������
���	
����	����	������	���$����"����
�����������������	����	��%���������
���	
�
���
����
������
���������	��������&� 	��
������

'�������(���)�'�������*	���	)�! �&)�!+,��-.�
/0+�1223456278�������1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

����������	
����
�	������E���������

/���	��������������
���F	�������

EG�+�����.��
)�! �&)�!+,��HI�
/0+�1223456278����E��1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

JKLMNOPQRNSNTUVWPXUQ�YZ[\]�

����������	
����
�	����������������

-�����	��������F��	������������	���&���
���F	���������
�����������	
���������	���&���
�������
�F	�������

�E�-�����	�-����)�! �&)�!+,�,+*�
/0+�1223456278�������1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

JKLMN̂UQRNSNOXR_̀�YZ[\]�

����������	
����
�	����������������

�
�������� �����������
	���
 �	������	�������������!���	��
���
�&���������	�����	
������	�������
� 	��
���F�������������* ��a��������

0��	��)�'
��b��c�
���)�d ����*	���	)�! �&)�!+G���e�
/0+�1223456278��,G���1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

����������	
����
�	����������������

*�������	���&�������F	�������

����!���
���
�����.��
)�! �&)�!+G��-d�
/0+�1223456278����,��1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

����������	
����
�	����������������

*�������	���&�������F	�������

G�a����
��d�&�.��
)�! �&)�!+G��df�
/0+�1223456278����,G�1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

.�� ��
������������

�
�������� ���������	������ ��	�	������"�
���������0�������������

*	������ ��	�	��	
�������������a�����*	���	)�! �&)�!+G��'/�
/0+�1223456278�������1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

����������	
����
�	����������������

'����	���&�������F	���������
���������	���&��F	��������	���
�������

���b��F
��������)�! �&)�!+G��ge�
/0+�1223456278�������1229:;<=:>?4@>38�

A>;<=:>?8�

BC>2>D<98�

JKLMN̂UQRNSN̂UQR�YZ[\]�

hijkljlhlm�nZopqlqrsqkh� Page 76



����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	�������	��������	�������������	��������������
�����������
������	��������

�	������ ���
���!������� ���	���
����
�����������������
����������
����	���
����
������ ����	���	
�����
����������
���

��"�
����
���#����$�%���$�%&'��((�
)*&�+,,-./0,12����34�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	������������
����	�������

3���%��	���A��
$�%���$�%&'��#B�
)*&�+,,-./0,12�����C�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	������3���������

��������	�������	���������	�����	$���
����
��������
���	��������	���	�����

4�D�����	��������$�%���$�%&'��BE�
)*&�+,,-./0,12����CC�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	������3���������

A���� ������	���� �������	������	
���������	������������	���������
� ��������������		� 
�
�
���������	����������  ����
�	����

�F�A����G����$�%���$�%&'��*B�
)*&�+,,-./0,12�������+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

HIJKLMNOPIJ�QRSTU�

����������	
����
�	������C���������

V����	�������
����	�������

�F�"��	��	��������$�A�����		��$�%���$�%&��4���
)*&�+,,-./0,12�F4'�F�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	������������	���������
����	� ������������	
������
������

����%��	���A��
$�V�		���	��$�%���$�%&'�CB(�
)*&�+,,-./0,12�F4''3�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	����������������

W�� 	�������������� ��	���������
����

D��
�����)���$�D��
�����&���$�V�		���	��$�%���$�%&'�CD#�
)*&�+,,-./0,12�F443��+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	������'���������

��������	�������	��������	���
������	�

���"��
�A��
�&���$����������	$�%���$�%&4�3X��
)*&�+,,-./0,12�������+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

A�����
��4���������

#�����	�����������	����
����������
���� 	�������������� ����	�
����������
��������Y�
���������
	���	
�����	
� ������!���$����
� ��������
����� ��	�
����!�Y�

��������������$����������	$�A�����		��$�%���$�%&4�3(V�
)*&�+,,-./0,12�������+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

A�����
������������
����D�� �����A��
$�V�		���	��$�%���$�%&'�C%%�

)*&�+,,-./0,12����3F�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

Z[\]̂\̂Ẑ_�R̀abc_cdec]Z� Page 77



����������	
�����������
�
����
����
������
����
�����	�
������
���
������
����
��
����������

����
����������
��
���
������������
�������������
����������	��������������������

�������
��
����
�
�
����

������ !"�

#���	��$�%���&���
�'�(��(')'*�

#���	��$�%���&���
����
�����
������&��&�
���
������

������������
��
����

'���+��������,���-�.�

���
��-�/	��-�/#��0/1�
#$�2�3��4567�8"�9)��:�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

A&&��%����
�������
���
�'0(��(')'*�

$�����
�����

�����������
��
����������&�������
��
������

������������
��
����

:�,�%��
����$��%�-��	����
��
-�,��
��

��-�/	��-�/#B�C1D�
EF#�3��4567�8"�9)�C��3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

A&&��%����
�������
���
�'0(��(')'*�

�������

������������
��
����

'*�A%����������
�-�,��
��

��-�/	��-�/#)�BGA�
EF#�3��4567�8"�9)�B'�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

HIJKLMNOPQRQSTUVITTW�XYZ[\�

A&&��%����
�������
���
�)0(�'(')'*�

#��
����%��
������
�����������
��
��������]	���
����������
������

��9�+�������̂���,���-�_�����
��-�_�����

��-�_'0�01#�
EF#�3��4567�8"�:B*:9�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

A&&��%����
�������
���
�'0(��(')'*�

E��

������(
���

�����
������
��
����

0'�������
��,���-�G��
������-�_�����

��-�_0C�:G �̀
EF#�3��4567�8"�9)�))�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

A&&��%����
�������
���
�)�(�'(')'*�

.���

������������
��
������
��]	���

����������

�0��+�������,���-�2��

����-�_�����

��-�_'C��#E�
EF#�3��4567�8"�9)�*'�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

A&&��%����
�������
���
�'B(��(')'*�

��������
�����,���(�����a�
��
�����E���
�����&��

�:��
�A	

���
�$��%�-�2��

����-�_�����

��-�_'C��#D�
EF#�3��4567�8"�9)�**�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

A&&��%����
�������
���
�'�(��(')'*�

.���

�����
������
��
������������

������������
��
����

'B�̂�b����
�$��%�-�2��

����-�_�����

��-�_'C��#c�
EF#�3��4567�8"�9)�:B�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

2�����A&&��%���,�d	�����e�̀���
���f�a�
��9(��(')'*�

2������&&��%�������&��&�
���
������

������������
��
����

���g������
�$��%�-�2��

����-�_�����

��-�_'C�*/F�
2̀$a�3��4567�8"�9)�90�3��!;< =;�>5?�4"�

@�< =;�>"�

������ !"�

hijkljlhlm�nYopqrqstqkh� Page 78



����������	
����
�	����������������

����	���������
����	����������������	������������	�����������	��������������	
������
������

 !��"�#�������$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'��()�
�*��+,,-./0,12�3��4 �+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

ABCDEFGHIJKJLCMNOCP�QRSTU�

����������	
����
�	������3���������

��������	���������	���	�������

�	�&�������V��W��
���
���$�X"���Y�
�V��
$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'��ZW�
�*��+,,-./0,12� 4�''�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	������!���������

����	�����
����������	�������	����	�������	��������	���
����
�	����	�������	��������	������

��'�[�����V��
$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'��Z��
�*��+,,-./0,12� 44 ��+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

V��"��
������������

���	��������������	
������
��������	��������(����	�������	��������	���
����

�	�����������	�������
���
���	����
�������	�����(����	�������	��������	��������	
�����
���	�	��\��������]���
���

����	������	������	�����̂��	����	������������	���	�������
���������	�#����	���	�"��	��	����
��
�����	����

' �_��
����V��
$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'��)̀ �
�*��+,,-./0,12� 443 �+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	������'���������

(����	�������
����
��������	����������������	������������	�����������	��������������	
������

������

 ��%��#�V��
$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'�����
�*��+,,-./0,12�3��!��+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	����������������

���	�
�\"��
����������	���������������	��������a����b������������
�������	
������	����������	
��
��"	
������	������	
���#��������#��	��\��������
����������
�"\��b���c�
����
����

��(
���	�\���$���
���������$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'��]W�
�X��+,,-./0,12�3��� �+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	������������	�������

������	���W����V��
$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'���V�
�*��+,,-./0,12�3���4�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

����������	
����
�	������!���������

��������	�������	���������
�
��#�����	����������	����	���������	������
����	�����	�
��
���
��
�����	������
�����������������
����

 4�X��
����V��
$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'�����
�*��+,,-./0,12�3�����+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

ABCDEFGHIJKJLEJdeBPfD�QRSTU�

����������	
����
�	����������������

V������������������������$����#�	������
��(&���
����������	
���	�
����\���#���#�

g ��X"���]���V��
$�%���	���
$�&���
��	��$�&�'���)�
�*��+,,-./0,12� 4!!4�+,,567896:;.<:-2�

=:7896:;2�

>?:,:@852�

hijkljlhlm�nRopqrqstqkh� Page 79



����������	
����
�	����������������

���������	���������	�����	���
������	��������������	����
��������
��������	�����	����������	�
�� �
��!��������
��	����	������	���	��������
���	��������	���	�����
�
"�

���#
����� �!�$��
%�&���	���
%�'���
��	��%�'���()*�
+,-�.//0123/45�6���7�.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

����������	
����
�	������7���������

#�������	���!��������	���������
�����	���������
����	�������

D�#
���
����%�&���	���
%�'���
��	��%�'���(*E�
+,-�.//0123/45�6�����.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

����������	
����
�	����������������

F����	����������
�	������G���������������������������������������������H67�6�I�J�	��
���������

� ��������+��
�!��(K��I��K���
���L����������
M�	��+��
�!��(K��I��K���
���L��	��
�
M�

7���E �!�N���$��
%�&���	���
%�'���
��	��%�'�����+�
+,-�.//0123/45�6�����.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

����������	
����
�	������6���������

#�������	���!��������	�������

H���� �
��� �	%�&���	���
%�'���
��	��%�'����E$�
+,-�.//0123/45�6���6�.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

����������	
����
�	������D���������

#�������	���!���	��������	���
�������

�6�O��	���-���%�&���	���
%�'���
��	��%�'���(#��
+,-�.//0123/45�6��6(�.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

PQRSTUVVWXYXZQ[\�] _̂̀a�

����������	
����
�	����������������

��N�G���	������!���� ����	�
������������%�����G����I��� ����	�
����b��	�����������
����
���
����
����

��I�7��������	
�$��
%�$�
������%�'���
��	��%�'�H�7J��
��F�.//0123/45�H(6(6�.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

����������	
����
�	������7���������

c����	���!���
����	�������

�(�#
�	���
�d�!%�$�
������%�'���
��	��%�'�H�7,O�
+,-�.//0123/45�6�����.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

PQRSTUVVWXYXefg\hXQiRXjUi[kfg\h�] _̂̀a�

����������	
����
�	����������������

-��	�
�� ��
����������	�����������������������	���������	��7���G�
�����������
�����������	����
����	�����	��������	
�����G�
��������

E�������+��
�+���%�l������!�$��
%��������	
%�E��	��%�E-���&,�
-E��.//0123/45�H(D���.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

����������	
����
�	����������������

������������������	���������	��7���G�
�����������
�����������	��������	�����	��������	
�����G�

��������

E�������+��
�+���%�l������!�$��
%��������	
%�E��	��%�E-���&,�
+,-�.//0123/45�H(D���.//89:;<9=>1?=05�

@=:;<9=>5�

AB=/=C;85�

mnopqoqmqr�ŝ tuvwvxyvpm� Page 80



�������������	�
��
���������
��
���������������

�������������	�������������������
	�
��	��
�	�����

�������
����������������������� 
������!���"����������"�
���	����"�#�	���"�#���$�%�
�&�'(()*+,(-.�/��0��'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=>?@ABCCDEFEGDHI�JKLMN�

�������������O���������������������

P���	�������Q��R���������������������������

S��
���	�Q�
����T���"�
���	����"�U���������"�U�0��VT�
WX��'(()*+,(-.�0SY$/�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

�������������O���������������������

O���������
�������R�����������������������������������	��������Q�ZO	����O�Z�[[�����������������
�
�������ZO	����\[�������	
���������������������������������	����������������������������������
�������

��T���������V����"�
���	����"�U���������"�U�0��#W�
WX��'(()*+,(-.�/��$/�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�


��
�����/���������

�������������	�������������������
	�
��	��
�	�����

P�������W�	��W���"�P�������W�	�"�
���	����"�U���������"�U�0��P]�
�&�'(()*+,(-.�/��S/�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

�������������	� ���
��
�����̂�\R�������������������

�������������	���������	�������Q�������R��������

/����
����&����"�
���	����"�U���������"�U�0��X��
&�V\�'(()*+,(-.�/���S�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=>_H̀aIIa_EbEcaIIBdeIadEFEcaIIBdeIad�JKLMN�


��
�����S���������

\��������������		�����������������������������������������	
������		���������������f�g�&������
�R����������������������R���������
���

���h�	���������
���"�#
�Q"�#�Y��
V�
WX��'(()*+,(-.�0S�0��'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

�������������O�����������S���������

P���	�������Q�������R��������

��!�		����V����"�i���������"�#
�Q"�#�Y��! �
WX��'(()*+,(-.�/���Y�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

�������������O���������������������

i�������	�������Q��R����������������

����#
�Q�
���"�i���������"�#
�Q"�#�Y��\i�
WX��'(()*+,(-.�/�����'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

�������������O���������������������

i��������Q�������R�������g�P���	�������Q�������j�������R���������

�$�T�	�����T�	f"�i���������"�#
�Q"�#�Y��kP�
WX��'(()*+,(-.�/��$��'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=>_H̀aIIa_E>d?EcaIIBdeIadEFE=>_H̀aIIa_�JKLMN�

lmnopnplpq�rKstuvuwxuol� Page 81



���������	��
���
�������������

���������	��
���
���������������
����
�
�������������
��
���
�������
���
������

�����

�������
��
����


��������
���������������

���
��
�������
���

���	��
��� �

����������
������
�!�
��������
"���
�����
�����������
��
��������
���#$%���
�
���������
�������&�
�&���
�����
��
�
�������
��
���
�������
�����'����

������
����
���
��
��������(�
���
���

��)�*�������������
�
�������������
���
������
�����
�����
���

�������������
���
�
�����

�)�

+�,���������-����%�
����.����
��
���/�����/����01�
��%#�2334567389�:��!:�233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

*���
	�������%

����

�������������

G�����

�
����

)���
������
��������
��

���������H������
�����������

���
�����
�����
	���
����


)��������
�
����
���
��������

�
����
�����
�
����
������
��

�H��
��������

�
����
�
����

��
��
�
���
���������	���

��
������
�
��
�����	�����

���/����I���.
����.����
��
���/�����/����*.�
0J��2334567389�:��K��233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

*���
	�������%

����

���!���������

L�
���
�������������
��

H�*�������

���
����&�
����
	���

������

��

!�G���/�
&�.
����.����
��
���/�����/����.*�
0J��2334567389�+��!��233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

*���
	�������%

����

���+���������

,�
������
������������������
��

�

�:��/
��

�,�������.����
��
���/�����/����M��
0J��2334567389�+���:�233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

���������	��
���
���+���������

���������	��
���
���������������
����
�
������
������
�������������
��

�

������

�%�
����.����
��
���/�����/����,1�
��%#�2334567389�+���K�233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

NOPQRSPRTUVWVXYZ[\]QOV̂V_RZZRZ�`abcd�

*���
	�������%

����

���+���������

L�
���
������������������
��

H�,�
������
������

������
��

�

���L��������������
���e�����������f�
���������f!K�:GI�
0J��2334567389�+���+�233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

*���
	�������%

����

���!���������

,�
������
��������
���
��������
��

��������H������
�����������

���
�����
�����
�����
�������
��
�
����

����
�
���
��

���
����
�
��

�!�,��
����.
����e�����������f�
���������f!K�gG1�
0J��2334567389�+��::�233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

NOPQRSPRTUVWVXYZ[\]QOV̂VhPTiPYjQ\YVhk]i�`abcd�

.������������������

.����
��
���

���������������������
����

	����

��
��������
�����

���e�
��������	���e�����������f�
���������f!K�+1l�
0J��2334567389�:�g+��233;<=>?<@A5B@49�

C@=>?<@A9�

DE@3@F>;9�

mnopqoqmqr�satuvnvwxvpm� Page 82



����������	
����
�	����������������

���	��������������	
������
�������	
������	���������	����
�����	��������
�	
����	�������	��
����	������
����������������������	
���	��������
���	��������	���	�����

��� �����������!
�	�����
��"���
��	����"#��$%%�
&'��())*+,-)./�$���#�())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

������� ���������	������������

�������
���������	����	����	�������������
���������	���<��������	�������

��=������<���������!
�	�����
��"���
��	����"#��$> �
� �?�())*+,-)./�$��@A�())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

������� ���������	��#���������

�������
���������	����	�����	�������������
���������	���<����������	���������	��������������
�
��
�����
��������

�#��B��
���������!
�	�����
��"���
��	����"#��$!B�
� �?�())*+,-)./�$�����())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

����������	
����
�	������#���������

C�������	���<���	�������	�����������������	�����	��������	�����������������	���<���
������	�������
	���������
��	����	����������
��D�

����C	��
�������>�
��������"���
��	����"�E��F��
&'��())*+,-)./�$�����())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

����������	
����
�	����������������

C�������	���<��������	�������

@�G
��&�����<���!
�	�����
��"���
��	����"#��$=%�
&'��())*+,-)./�$��$��())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

HIJKLMJLNOPQPRSTUVWKIPXPRSTUVWKI�YZ[\]�

>�����
��$���������

�̂	������������	������������D�
����������	
������������������	����
������<����#���_��� �����
�̀��������������
�����������<��	�a���������		�����������
b�

���
��	�����������c#���_��� ������=��<��=�A�@d&�
'̂G�())*+,-)./�EAE@#�())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

����������	
����
�	����������������

C��������
�	����	���<���
����	�������

@#�����	�������=��<��=�A�@=e�
&'��())*+,-)./�EA@#@�())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

����������	
����
�	������$���������

C�������	���<���	��������	���
������f�d�	��������������	����
������<����g�����	�����	�

����C���<�=��g�>��
��=��<��=�A�@���
&'��())*+,-)./�$���$�())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

����������	
����
�	������#���������

���	��������������	
������
�����f�h��	����	����������
���	������	�����������	������	����

�$�����	�������=��<��=�A�@='�
&'��())*+,-)./�$��E��())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

����������	
����
�	������@���������

C�������	���<��������	������f�G����	���<���������	���<�����	���	������f���	���	�����	������	����
����	���������������
����

��=��������
� ������=��<��=�A�@Fe�
&'��())*+,-)./�$��A#�())01234156+75*/�

85234156/�

9:5)5;30/�

ijklmkmimn�oZpqrsrturli� Page 83



�

����������	
����
�	����������������

�����	������������	���������	
������		�������������� ����	�������
����	��������!�	����
�� �	��
	
�������

""�#�	
�����$��
%�&���%�&'(�)*+�
,-'�.//0123/45�������.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

B��������������$�C����
���
�+���	�
��)���������

B��������������D����������
����	����	�����D����EF�G���		����G��	���	
��������	�� ���G����
�
�������G�	�����"G�	��	
�����	
��D�	
����	�F��
��
������G��	�����������
����������	�	���%��FHG�

� 
�������
��D����� %�"��F������	���������	�%�����F�����	������G�	���������	%���F��
��
��%�"��F�
��	��������
�����������
������G��	�	
���	��

-�����	
�����I�	���
�������������'	
%�B����'���%�&���%�&'(�)J'�
�*'�.//0123/45����H��.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

$�D���
������������

�����	�������� ����	�����D���	���	��������+��� �������������

��)�������&��I�$��
%�&���%�&'(�)'��
,-'�.//0123/45����E��.//6789:7;<1=;05�

>;89:7;<5�

?@;/;A965�

KLMK�NOPQRKSTUVWXKOYKZ[[R\]QP\Ô_K̀W]\aWab�

cdefgegcgh�ijklmfcmnom
fc�

Page 84



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��
������������������������

�
�
��	�

�
�����������������

�
�������	�

�
��
������
���
���

�
�����������	�

�
��
������� ����������
�
�������

�
����
����������	�

�
�
 ����
����

� �

�
�!��������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
������
����"��
���	�

#$%&
'(')*
%&
+%,$%-
,$)
'./0%1
234(%-




�
����
�!	�

�
50(--%-6
7'')(0&8























9:;326)2





















9:<),)*4%-)2




















=->3*1)4)-,
7'')(0&

9:;326)2
























9:<),)*4%-)2



















�
��������?�
�������������������



#$)
@344%,,))
%&
*)1344)-2)2
,3
,$)
-3,)
,$)
*)'3*,

(-2
('')-2%1)&


�
������
�����	�

�

�
�A�BA�CD��
E�F"�AGE�H�
��C��IA�J	�



<3
,$)
'*3'3&(0&
(113*2
+%,$
,$)
530%1K

L*(4)+3*MN

 O)&
 
 


�DCD���PD��H�DQ����R���SSE���	�
�EPCP�ECG���BGE�CDEAPF�CPT��EFJ�
�APFET��CDEAPF	�



=U)1.,%V)
<%*)1,3*
3>
W)&3.*1)&
,3
(2V%&)

*)6(*2%-6
*%&M
4(-(6)4)-,


�
�DCD���PD��H��X��YDEZ���E���DA��
AS���FAY���F	�

�
[\7

�

�
�]YCGEDH"�EZ��FEDH�E�BGE�CDEAPF	�



[3
 





�
�APFET���T��H��APEDA�EP̂ ��SSE���	�



_̀a

�
�

� �


̂ �PTC�
�D���

:

������������������
b


Page 85

Agenda Item 6



����������	
���� �

�
������

�
�	��
������
����
��
�

�
����

�
������ !"#�$�%���� � &��%��$���
�

'(��)�*+�,-��.���
/�01��2�,�3�1��0�(�4�

5�16�

*+�,-��.��
7�68�0�'(1�0�

910��7�68�0�� :10�;�0��

�
�

� � �

/,0-��;<�'=66������ '=66������ '=-;,�
� �

�
�

� � �

� � � �

�
>?@� A���!�$B &�
�
5(������1�6=;�(
<�0�4=0���=��(��'=66������=)��(��:
1;;�;2��44�1
��
=�2���121�;���
��,���=;��=)��(��1-�(=0��<�1;��121�;���*;)=0,�6�;���=��,�����0.���1;���(=����(1��
(1.��8��;��-8��C-�;�
<�����06�;���8<��(��:
1;;�;2�D;�4�,�=01��E��
�
���1,(����=��(��0�4=0��10���(��D;�4�,�=0��F�,���=;��1;��1�.�081
�0�4=0��G�

�8��
40���;�����=��(��'=66������=;��(���64
�,1��=;��=)��(����,���=;��=;��(���44�1
���(1��
G�0��-4(�
�E�
�
H?@� �$ �IB��$ ��
�
5(1���(�����6�8��;=���E�
�

�
I��
�J��A�	KL�J����#�M����N��
�
�J�
�	
�&�
��O��N�
F1.���710;=P�Q�1��=)�F�.�
=46�;��71;12�6�;��
:
1;;�;2�/�0.�,��P�F�410�6�;��)=0�R��=-0,���1;��R�2-
1��=;P�
S�T;=G�
�<�:
1,��PU-0<�����U3V�W*X�
��O��@>Y>�HZ[�ZH\>��
%]��O���?]���Ĵ _���?LJ̀ ?�K�

Page 86



�
����������		
�����

��
���

��
��

����������������������������

����������

� !�"#$! %&'!(�)%%* +,,�-%#*(�.&/0(�.12�3.4�5�6�78�9��

:#/$+#,�*!;%,+$+%<�#<*�/!=,#>!;!<$�%?�3�<%@�*A!,,+<B�

C���86�97��

���
D�EFG3HGHEHI�

JG'�K #L#<#�.!B&;�

�

���M���
N
�D�OP1�
Q

MRR
��
���

���M�D�-!?&'!� �		
����S	
D�)/+$$!<�-!=/!'!<$#$+%<'�

�		��
���M��TMUD�V2WXXGYZ1� �		
����

���M�D�O+';+''!*�

����������

[H[�.&/0�\,*�-%#*(�:/!'$A+> (�J#<> !'$!/(�JHF�3:-�5�6�78�9��

K!>%<*�?,%%/�!]$!<'+%<�#$�/!#/�$%�?%/;�3�<%@�?,#$�#<*�/%%?�!]$!<'+%<�

C���86�97��

���
D�H2G33GHEHI�

#̂''!,�Y,!$> !/�:/%=!/$0�J#<#B!;!<$��1$*�

�

���M���
N
�D�OP1�

Q

MRR
��
���

���M�D�-!?&'!� �		
����S	
D�)/+$$!<�-!=/!'!<$#$+%<'�

�		��
���M��TMUD�VXH[[GYZ1� �		
����

���M�D�O+';+''!*�

����������

W�̂/%'?+!,*�_̀ !<&!(�K&;;!/'!#$(�-#;'L%$$%;(�.&/0(�.1X�F4a�5�6�78�9��

�A%�'$%/!0�'+*!�!]$!<'+%<�#<*�!]$!/<#,�#,$!/#$+%<'�+<>,&*+<B�b+<>�>,#**+<B�$%�?+/'$�
?,%%/�#<*�/%%?(�/!<*!/�$%�$ !�B/%&<*�?,%%/�#<*�=#/$�%?�$ !�!]+'$+<B�?/%<$�!,!̀#$+%<�

C���86�97��

���
D�HHG33GHEHI�

J/�PA#<�:!//0�

�

���M���
N
�D�OP1�

Q

MRR
��
���

���M�D�-!?&'!� �		
����S	
D�)/+$$!<�-!=/!'!<$#$+%<'�

�		��
���M��TMUD�VXI3EGYZ1� �		
����

���M�D�O+';+''!*�

Page 87



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%&�'
��#(���)*)+��
,-�.�!!�/�0���� !�12��3. !�4�52��56789�

�!�9!����: ;���� �!:�<�,-�:/��2��;�:�;-� =�2:�:���

������ !�<�:�>�?�����@,�;�ABAC��

�
�������6�=>��88D7EAFBDGDACDCCACF?C�
7/��H�:�/ I��J�G  </����6 �<J�1I;-�1KL�F1M��
NO P�������������#�$����$��������
��QR�
S�����P
�����$�T
����U�V������	�W���%XX*�
�	����������S������
�	������������	����#����
���

NO P�������������#�$��(U�"��(����Y�	�#��	����������$�����
��
S�Y��U�Z���
�
������
Y
�
�	��T
�������

NO P������������
��[�S�\RQXX]�$���$�%R�W�	����)*))]�������S���$�(U��
�����$���$������������
�̂_���#(���)*))��

NO P���$����
�#������
�
��$����������������$�#
����
����$��������#����
S��̀�����	�
$������	��

������ !�

%�OP�������������$��#����$��

8;���@�!�;-�5�::�;��

)�Oa��������������������������������(#����$������	��
S��$$���
�����������b��
�
���$����	����������
�����������#]�b��������$���	��$��
������������������
c
�(����"��$�
��d�$%�e�$	#���]����������#
��������������������
S�a������
S�)��

+�OP�����������S����$��
����fghijkikl���
�
�������
����#��$#������
������������
����#�����������]��
���������U]����U���������������(���������$�SS��������
�����
$����
�#������
�
��$���$��������
�
S��
��������
�������������
S�������������
�
��$�������������
��$�������S���������
���
�����
�������������$��
�(��
�
������$��

&�Omnopqrisgrktqouqopiqgkknonujgvqwvgjtqrixirrikqouqgtqfyurriyoiklzqb��
�����������U�
�$$���������
���#��
��
#����
�����$��������������S�
#�����
��	�����U���(#����$�
��������$�����������T
�����������$��
������������P��U�$
��
�����
��
���
����
���������������#���
����������̀�����������
��
���$������#��
��$����e�$����

��������������b��������
���$�$������#U��������$�����
�����
�$��	�U��

�̂Ob��������$$����������$$���
������S
�#���
����(#����$�(U��������������������������

S��
���#����	�(��
���

5��!�9��I���

\�OP���#����������������

{�|O�����SS����
S�������
�
����
������������������$������������
S���������}�

{��|O�����SS����
S�������
�
����
�����������	��
�$���
���
S����	�(
����	�
��������]�
������������������	��$��
�
���


���$�������U}�

�
%�c
�(
���"��$�
��d�$���P���T
������
S�����d
�$
��Y
�
�	��
S�c��
��U�~)*%Q���acT�)R)+�{W$#��|�
)�Y�����$�a������
S��d�$���""��~�Vd�%XR)�V+Q��

Page 88



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

!���"#������ �	���	$���
 %���������
�&���
�	��
��&�'��� 
��&�&�$
 �$��� ��
������ 	(�
������� ������ � ��� &��
��)�� ����	����*���&�

!��"#���� �	���
	�&�'%���	���
���+�������������%��

,-./01/2

345657896:5;<:5==9565;79:

>�#������������ 
�� �%��	����� ��(���
�	�
 �%�&������&�&���������?��&
�	��
��	�� ��
&�	����
 ���%
������ ���� �	���	�
$�	�  
��&����� 
�� ���	(�������� ��
� �&
+������%�+
&�	��	�+��&������&���&���  ���&�&�������	�	����������	+���� �
��
�	��?�����
���&�������������)�	�����&���������	��
��
$���%��� ������ �
� �������� ���+� �����&��
��&� �	��������%�'��&�	� �'�&��	��� �&��?���	�
���� �����		��
���� +$����
�����	� ����	�������&(�����	���� ��(��	���	����%�
�
++��	� �����������	���
���

@�#����	������� 
�
	����
��&�	�����
������	����&��
��������������A����  ����+����

$������)�	�����'�����$
 +���������������	���(�����
��&(��
���� (� �	���������
&��������
$�	�'	��������'������&�+�		�����?���
��&��
�� ����� %��
�	�&� �'���
�
 ��
��
$�������
��	�������������
��&������ �� �+��&����������(�&�	����������� %�
���� 
�	�	�B��
$�����	���������� 
�
	����
��&�	����$������%���+��������)�����
$�
����	����
���&��� 
��������	���(�	��������������)�	�����	��	��
$�	������
��&�'��
�
�����'�%�� 
&�&�����������&�$ 
+���'�������������
���	��

C�#D� ��� (���	�+������� 
�����
�$���	� ���
��&�����������	�'�����&
���&��?���
��&�
�
��'��	
�	� ������
 ����
�������	
��	��
� ��&� ������ 
�
	�����	����		$���
�
���+�
 � %�&�	���(�'��� ���� ����� �	�������&���������
��&�'��'���&���&�
����	�� ���(�����������	��&�����%������$���&�	������+
��+���������(��
����� �
�����������+���&��� ���%���&����� �	����������  ����+����
$����&
�	���&�&

 	(�
 �	���	�����

 �� ��������
�(����� �	����&�&�	����������		������� 
�
	�&�'���
�%(�
'%��� ����
$���	��)��		����	�B����&�$
 �� &��
	���
����(��
��&�'����� 
+������
��&������ �������$���� ��������&
�	��
��+�������
	�������
�� �'���
���
�����
&�	�����

���#����
$����	��$���� �	��
����� � �	���������'
�&(�
'� �	������&���	����%�
����� �������&������������������	���&� ������� ��������		���&�'����%��?�&
��
��
�� ������������� 
�
	�&����� ���
�	��
��&�'��&�	� ����%��
����&��
����� �� �
$�
����	���������	��� �&
+���������&��

 �&�	����
$�����&���������
��&�'�� ��&��%�
���� ������&����	�����
��&��
��'����&��������
���		� 	�'%���

���#?��
������������������
��&�'�����������
�������������&	��������
�&���
���E�������
�	����+�%(�?��+��
���
������&������������� 
&����
��
$�� ��	���&

 �	� �''� %�
�
��&�'��	�$$��������
�	� ��������� 
�
	�&�&����
�+�����F
 �
�� (����&	�������
�
��&�$�����
�
�� �
+�������

 �A�����%�
$�&�	����
$������ 
�
	�&�&����������	��$�
��&��	��
������������'���G�	��$�����
��$
 �����

���#����������������'
������
��
�	�&� ���
�(������ 
�
	����
��&��� +�������� ���� �
��&������ �����
$������ ����?���
��&���� �$
 ���
�$�����������
�����	�HI�
�(�
J�
����&�J�
��
$�����E� %�K���� %������
�+���������!����	���CC>"�!����K��"�
�������
���������%���+	�$
 �&����
�+���	�
$��

&�A�����%������� �	�������&�
+�������
	�������
�� �'���
���
�������� ���� (�A�����%���&��
��	�����
$�����
� ����

:

Page 89



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

!"#"$%&'($)"*"($+&(,&$-"%./(01"$%&(''02"-1+&

���3�	��
��4��5
��6���������	��������� ��	�57����4���������	�������6���4�������8�
��������������
��
�	�4� ���
�6�7�4���� 9�	�������7��47���	��
����������������	�

:�������������������4
�	��
�����	�4����	��� �	���6������ 
�
	�4�4����
�7����
�
��4��
�� �	�������
�� �

������
�������4�����;���� 5� 9�� ������44���
����96�
�����
  ����4�����	���4��������������� 

:�����	��
��4��
��� 
��4��
��
 �������	�
:
 �
�� �

�������

���3<� ��� 6����� �7������� �� ���4�	�4��:��������5���5��� 

7	6�����	����
	���
�����
5
��4� 96� �:����������=�	������  ����7������4� �����
�	����������4>
������
���4����� ��� ����	
��
� �	�4�������� 
�� ���	��
����� �� ���4��
 ��� ��	�4��
:�
�����������	���������������	��:���
 	��
����� 6�8��
�	�4� ����������� 
�
	���
�
��4��
�� �	����������
		�
:�� ����9��

���3����� 
�
	�4�4����
�7�����
��4��
���� ��
7����������� 9���
	��� 
=�7��9��
�
����	
������	��5
��4� 9�
:������������	�����8�����
���4������������	��� ���
��
4�	������5������������ 
�
	�4�	�4���������
�6�����5
��4� 9���4��������
�	�
:�
?
	�������4�������4�@A��

4�����B
�4�7�9��4�� ���
��������4�����	���
������
�������� ���
�	���4�C=���	�
�	��
�B�	�4�������� 
�� ���	6�D�����7���� 9�
����������
��7����E�FG� �������H��?��� �����		6����	��	����4�������4�
��� �
:���
 	�������:������������::����
�������5
� 	������4��������	����:����
���=��
:�
����	������4������ 
�
	�4�4����
�7�����

�E�3����	�4���������
��
:������ 
�
	�4�4���������
��4�5����
�	�
 �9	����������������
�44���
����7�		����: 
7�����������4� 

:��8���
��4�5����������� 9���
	��
� 
=�7��9��
�����	�4��5
��4� 9���4��
��4� ������� 9�	����:������	� �����
:������	�
	���6������5
� ����
������ 	��
��4�������� 9����������	���� ����:�: 
7�����
� 
�
	�4�4����
�7���6���4�����
��4�5����4��9�4
7�����������	����: 
7����� �
��5���5��� 

7	���4��� 4��	��

�I�3;
�	�J�����96������ 
�
	�4�4����
�7�����
��4��� 7�������������
�4���
�	�
:�
�����5
� ����
������ 	�59��� ����
:���	�
�� 5�� �����::����
��
���

��
��?
	�
���6�������4�@A����� �:
 �6����:���	��
��
7��9�������
�����	�K�
����4�K�
��
:�
����L��������6���� �	�����
:����	�7�����		��6�	�����
���	� ��4����
�7���	�
7�������
	�������
�� �5���
���
������ �����4�� 
��4�����

4�J�����9� �	�4�������
���� 
�7���6�����������
��
�	�4� ���
�������7�����
�� �	�4��������7����9��

�@�3�
���9�C?�
��MNOPQRQPQSTQUOVMWXMSOWXQOYZ[STM\]NOUQTMNMZSOSZWMTQOMSOPQN̂QTWOZROWXMNO
7�����		����
���� ����4
�	��
������� ��
�5��
:�4� ���� ����������

!"#"$%&'($)"*"($+&(,&,0*01-&(''02"-1+&

�A�3_OSZWQOWXQOYZ[STM\]NOTZSTQPSNOPQ̀aPUMS̀OWXQOPQU[TWMZSOZROQbWQPSa\ÒaPUQSON̂aTQO
�	��� �	����
:������ 
�
	�4�4����
�7�����K
���� 6������������	�����	�
:����� 9�
���� 
�	�	�c���?
�����	���4��������	�5	��������	�c��
:������ 
�
	�4�4��������
��4����� �	��������� 7:�����	�����::���	����	��
��4�� ����6���4����������������
�
�
�	�4� ���
�����������9��������75� �
:�:��� ��
������ 	6���� �� �7���	����

4�
�7
����
:�	������
�����: 
���:
 ���� 94�9� �J�� �7���	��

���3����	�����7��9���	�����	�����	������
�����: 
���
:���4���������	��
��� �����6����	�
�
��4��
��
��� �������	���	��4����
�����	�c��
:�����	������4������5����9��
��������
�
�4���
�	������������������������������ 7�		�
���� ���
�5��� ����46�������
�
��4���	� �������� ����9��
��4�5��7��������4��

Page 90



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

���!��� �"
 �#������ 
�
	�$�$����
�%�����
��$�� 
��$��	���	"���
 &��������
�
�$���
�	�"
 �"��� ��
������ 	������ ��� $��
��'�� ����	������(����� �"
 ��
���
 $	�����������
�����������%	�
"��
�����	�)�
����$�)�
��
"�����*���
"�
��	� ���������$����
�%���	�$�%
�	� �����������+���	���$� $	�
"���&
����
�����#��
���&�,-�
��$
�	��
������� ��
�+�� ���������
����	�%�����		����

./0123454562

���!�����������	����"���	������������$�"���$������
�%����)����7�	��� ������	�
�
�	�$� ���
���	��
�+���������
������
���%������"���� �	���$���8� $	����������$�
� 
��$������������	�������������		� &���"
 %���
����	��
��� 
��$�$����������%��

"�����������������������
���

���!��������	���������
���� #���������������	�+%����$����$������������"
 %�
"���
��	��9�	�$�:
���;������7�	���		�		%������$�<����
��;������<����(���	������
��
�
 �	� ��
 ���=>?@ABCDCEFBGCB>GCHFIEJ?@KACJFEJGLEAC���������	�+%�		�
��
"����	��
$
��%���	#����&�$
��
��	�����
���
���������������	���%��+��� ���� � �	�
�$�
�
����� ��	
��"
 � �"�	������ 
�����������������%���+�������:
�������
��$������
��$��%����
��
 �����&��
��
%%����
�������
�����	�
"�����$
��%���	����	����
�
��$��
��+��� �M�$���$�+&�%������������%����
����
�����

���!�$$���
����&#��������$�����+�"
 ��%����$�����	��������"� ��� ����������
���������
���
��� ����������������	������	�	�+	�N�����&�+���� �"�	�$�+&�����
:
������"
��
���������	�+%�		�
��
"����	���������(��	��%	��������������������
��
 �"����	������������$����
�%������$������"
 �%����
��$� ��
 �	�	�+%����$�
��������	����������	
�	���
 ��$���������������
���(��
������������:
������$�$��
��
��������� ��	
��"
 � �"�	������ �	�����
"����	�%�����		���"
 ������%
	�� ������
������������������
��
�������������	������

���!(������+����� 
��$�$����������:
�������
 ��OKA� ������ �	�
�	���
������"� ��� �
������������������
���(���
��� 	���������� ��
%%��$���
�	�
"������		�		%���#�
��%��&�������
���%�����������&��
��������&��
	�	��� �	���
������ 
�
	�$�
$����
�%������$������ �%�$����
���
 �	�	�
��$�+����$� ������� �
 ��
�
$����
�%�������
 $� ��
���	� ������	�"��&���$�	��+����&�
"�����	�����<�+M�����
�
�����%�
	���
��
"� ��
%%��$�$��
�$���
�	#�����:
�������
 ��&��
�"� %	���������
��	��
�
+M����
���

�P�!�����������
"������+
����
����� #�(��
�	�$� ���������� �	��
"���	���
���%������
�������&���	�+����"���&��
�	�$� �$���$�����#�	�+M�����
��
�$���
�	��������������
������������������ ���
�+�����
��$#����� �	���
��$�+��%�������$������	���Q
 ����	�
 ��	
�#������ 
�
	����
%����	�������
���&�,-R�
"�����*����

STUVWXYZTTVW[X

�R�!(�����
���$�������� ���
�	�������������������
�������������� %�		�
����	�
	
�����"
 ����� &�	�%��� �� 
�
	����
����	�������#��
���� �����:
������$�$��
��
 ��	����&��
��� �	������ ��� $��
���	��""����
����� ���� ���$������ ������
(�$��$#�(��
�������:
�����KA��
%%���	������������
""��� � ��
 ��������	� �	������
9��������	����%�&#����	��	��
����%���� �"
 �%���
��$$ �		�������������
���'��
"�
���	�������#�������(������$��� %���$�
����	�
���%� ��	��

�\�!����� 
�
	�$�$����
�%����	���	��
�� 
��$������ ���$������������+���
"�
���
%%
$�������� ������� ���
�	�
"��������������	�"�%��&#�����������	�
	����	��$��	��&������
"����� �� �$���
���#������ ��������	����������	����%��$#�(�

�
��:
������ �"��PRR���

Page 91



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

�������!�!��� ��� !��
������� �����"	�
#�������$����%���
 �&'�����(����(�)����
�%&�*�	���
������	��+�
#�����&'�����(�����������

�+�,���	��� ����������!��
����"������!�	� �"�����
�-��� �		"������!������"�	���
�.�
�!�������'�����(�
#�
��
 �����(�$��������� 	
�	���
�	�� ���� ��������
� 
�����!���� ���� �	������!���
	����
�!
��
��	�� ����.���!�#
	�� ��

!�
 �����
�	�$��������� 	
�	���
�	�� ���� ��������� 
�����!���� ���� �	������!�
�� 	
�	���
�!
��
��	�� ������� 
�����!���� ���� �	���	������!����/0123452� ����
��!� �����
��
 �$����#��

���,6�#���(�7//10897:0;:<0;7//0==74:52;>7?9=@;=9A94B;8918C?2:74802;74D;:<091; �����
�	�

$	� ��������!������
�� �$���
�������������������� 
�
	����
��!�"�����
E��� �����		-�6��"��
���
������!�����������������!����
�"�����	�����
��(�

���
��������$����
����������������
�"�������	���� 	
������ ��"	�����	���!�
���!	���	��
��!-������������	�����	�
#����� (����� 
�	�	�F��	������������� �������
�
�#��� ���
�	���!�!�	����
#�����!���������	������(��
�$���
		�$����������������	�
	�"��� �����		� (� �'�� �"���	�#
 �������������������
��� �	���������������� "�6�
������!����#��!��$
����

���,�	�	���-���� ���	��������	����#������!���������� �#�	���
#������������ "�		�
��
�
��!��
�#����������������"	�
#������%&������ �#
 �-�������6��������!�
��� 
� ����� ��� !��
�����#�"��(�	������
�-������  ��	�
��(�"
!�	�����������!�
���	�����!�	"�		���
#�������������	���� 
�
 ��
�����"���	�
#���������������
������"������"�
#�� 
��������������� ���� ���!������ �����
#������ �����!�����
��������
�!���
�	�
#������$
� ����
������ 	��

GHIJKLMNHIO

���,����� 
�
	����
�#����	����������!����
�"����������	�����
�����!���� ��� ���
�

��� ��
�	�!� ���
�	�
#�	�##����������������������!��������!���	�
��	�
��!�$��
"�!��
��� ������������
 !����������������� �#
 �-������������	�
��!��
��
	�����!��

PQRSSTUVWQ
6E%�&X�YZ�

Page 92



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%&�'
��#(���)*)+��
,-�.�!!�/�0���� !�12��3. !�4�52��56789�

�!�9!����: ;���� �!:�<�,-�:/��2��;�:�;-� =�2:�:���

������ !�<�:�>�?@:/�A B�C,�;�?D?E�

�������6�=>��88F7G?HDFIF?EFEEHJKDL�
�M�<,�!N�. M��O�G?G�1M;-�P�<�6 �<O�1M;-O�8;��:Q��/�5?K�H86��
RS T�������������#�$����$��������
��UV�
W�����T
�����$�X
����Y�Z������	�[���%\\*�
�	����������W������
�	������������	����#����
���

RS T�������������#�$��(Y�]��'
���̂���������	����������$�����
��
W�_��Y�]���
�
������
_
�
�	��X
�������

RS T������������
��̀�W�a\)&&b�$���$�%)�c�����Y�)*)+b�������W���$�(Y��
�����$���$�����������
\�]�����)*)+��

RS T���$����
�#������
�
��$�������
�$�W�

���d�����
�����������
�W
�#�%��
��W���b���$��

W�
�d�����
���

������ !�

%�ST�������������$��#����$��

8;���C�!�;-�5�::�;�

)�S 
̂��������
�$�����
W�$
�(�b�e���������$�����$��������
��
W�$����
�#����
fghijklkmfgmnolmpqjghfirsmklhfsfqgmgqnfhlmfgmnolmtugglvmolukfgwmutqxlmusmnofsmfsm
����#
��������������$����������$��������
���

5��!�9��M��

+�ST����WW����
W�������
�
����
������������������$������������
W�����������

6��� !��

&�ST������������
�����������
���
��Yb���$�
W���������(���$��	��
����$��������
���
�
##�����������$���������$�
����#������
�
�	�W�����������$���������T�����������
�d�����	����	����
���
��Y��d�����
�b������W�����

Wb��
����������
W�������
����Y�
������������$��Y�������������������������������

y�Sz������������
�
�����
��$������$����������$��

Wb����������������$$���
����
#�����	����
�	���������$�����W���������
��Y���
�
��$b��
��$��
����Y�
�������#�
�����
���(���$��	��e���
��$�(�����
������Y���$�$
#�������$$���
���������
��$�
��������
����Y�(��
Y�������������̂������b�������
#��������$���������
���
��$�
������������(���
���������
��Y�W�{�$�����������
�������������$�$�������	��

a�S_Y��������
W������

��$���	����$�������(������������	���
W�����������
W�����
(���$��	b�������
�
�����
��$�(�������Y����
�	��
����������
���
������
���
(���$��	���$��
��$�(����$��Y���
#��������������������������

U�S[��
�$��	�Yb�������
�
�����
��$����#�����������������$������������
W����������
��$�������
�W�����������Z
�������|'%�)b�|'%�U���$�})�+�
W�����_��Y�~�����Y�
�����
�#����Z�����[�	����%\\U���T
	�����b��������
���������#�W
��
$����
�#��������������������	������$��$�
W�$���	����$�������$
��
����������
���������(����$�������WW����
������������������$��
��������
W������
�����Y��

Page 93



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
��� 
��������!��	����
"�������������������������������

#$%&'()*$%+

,�-�����"
�
	����
��.��"
��.������..���
����.��������������/� �	����
��"�0���
��
�
��
�����
�	����	����1���.��
��.�"�	���������
�
/���0���2��	�.�"����
�
�	�"����
����.�
��
�������
���3
����"4�.����
�����	�����
2������"
�
	���
���	��0���2��	��
��.�0����"1���/���.��

��-���
".����14������"
�
	����
�2����	����������.����
�/����������	�����
�����.�
���"���"���
�
���"��
�	�.�"���
�	�
2�	�22����������������������.�������������
.���	�
��	�
��.�0��/�.��
���"������������
".�����������������"�2
"�4�����
�������	�
��.�0��.�	/�		�.��

567889:;<6
=>?�@A�BC�

Page 94



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�

�

������������� !�
"����������#�$��
��%&�'��
(���)*)%�

+,�-�.�//�01,�223�45 !�67�8 ����1 0�

�!�9!����1 0���� �!1�:�+,�1;��8��0�1�0,� /�81�1���

������ !�:�1�<�==�> ?�@+�0�=A=B�

�
�������.�/<��CCDEF=GAD�D=BDBB=BBHI�
H�-0 �/���:��?�!J�7�3J0,7�.�@�+ 11 @�32K�L>M��

NO P�������������#�$����$��������
��QR�
S�����P
�����$�T
����U�V������	�W���&XX*�
�	����������S������
�	������������	����#����
����

NO P�������������#�$��(U�Y��Z����V���U��	����������$�����
��
S�����T
������
S�����
Y���
�
������[
�
�	��
S�[��U��

NO P������������
��\�S�]X%&*̂�$���$�)�_�(����U�)*)%̂�������S���$�(U��
�����$���$��
�̀W�����)*)%��

NO P���$����
�#������
�
��$������$
�(�����
��U���$���a�����
���
�

������ !�

&�OP�������������$��#����$���

b��!�9��J��

)�OP���#�������������������SS����
S�������
�
��$�$����
�#����
������������������$�
�����������
S������
���$������	���$�����
��$��	��������

.��� !���

%�OP�������������$������$�(��	��
����������
##
$���
����������

S�
������
����������$��
S�T�
�S���$�W�������P���������������$������̂��������������U�
S�
$������	��U����
��������������c
�����̂���
���
����������������$����������������

S��
��������U��������̂�$��������$$���
�����$���������
��̂�S�����S�

��
$����
�#����������	��U�����(��
��P�������
�������S�
���	�(��$�S����������������
��������	�
���
S���
���������
���#������
#��������$����$��U�����������$��d��
�$$���
�̂���������#��������
#�����������$���#������U���������a�������#���������
����������
�	�����������̂���
��$��	���������
S���������
��������U�����������	��$��

�̀OP�����
�
�����������
���
��U���$���a�����
�����������
����U�����$$���
���
�
�a���������������
��̂������$��	�e�������$$��	��
�����S�����S�

����$��

S���$�
���$����
�����	�
��$�S�

����$������
S������a�����	�S�
����������
���d���
��$�
�������(�U���������������������
�
���
���
S�������
����U���$������������$$���
����
(��
��������������f�����������
��$�(���
��������$����	��U�������������a�����	�
S

�������
S�����$������	���$��
��$��
������������������	���(�U
�$������a�����	�
��$	������
��$��������������(������e��(����$$���
��������
��$�S�����
���������
��
��S���������������������$���
�
���
���
S�����$������	���

g�Of���������	�
��$�S�

��S�
���	�(��$���
h����
��
S�������
����U��
��$�(��
�������$̂������$$���
����(�����S
�#����S�����S�

�̂�S�������
�	�������������
S

������̂��
��$�
�������#������������
S�������
����U��d���
��$���$��������
���������
#�������
S�����������	�(�����$�����������������
����U���������	�
���

S�������������������##�$�����	�
���
S�$������	���������������
#�����������
���	��U�(�����������$��P�����
����U��
��$���������
������U���$��#(������$��

Page 95



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�����������	����
 �������������������������������

!���������
��"�#��	���#�����������	���$���������	�����"� �% 
�����������
��� 	�
�������	� ���$�����
�� ����"�&��	�
�	�
%�����	���� �&����&
"�	����	�	���$�����
� 
�
	����
��"� ��"��	���� �&��"���"��
�� ���"�%
 &�
%�"����
�&�����

'�()���""���
�$��� ������*�� �������&���	��
��"� �	������������ 
�� �+������ ����
���
�� �
�	�#
����������	������"��������������"� ��
���*�������,�������""���$�
��������&���"��
��� �	�
%��������� ������	���"�����  ����"�#+����,���$��
��"�%����
�
� �%���������� �"
&�������*�� ����&��� ���	�
%�����	� �����)���
��"�"����������
�
�	�	����+�����*�� ����&��� ���	���������&&�"������������+���"$������������
�
����� ����������%� 	��%�

 �� ���� 
��"����"
�$��
��"�� 
��"�����
�� ��+�
&
"� ���*�� ����"�	����������
��"��
��	����		%���+������ �������- 
	%���"�
������$������ ������	����+�.�  ��������
���*����

��(/
 ����� ��	
�	������$������ 
�
	����
��"��������	����%�������"�� 	���%%����
��
������� ���� ���"������ �����
%�����"����������"������ ����)���
��"�%�����
�
�
&��+�������
���+�0�
��
%�����1� +�2���� +������
�&���������3�44�5���"�
6�����&���� +�����������
��&����'����� ���
�	���"�7*���	�
�	��
�8�	�"�������
� 
�� ���	�3����$���"���"�����5���	
%� ��	����+�	�����
���	� ���
�	��
�*���	�
�	���"����� ���
�	�� ��	+&������������������
 �������#���"������"�
	�  
��"����� �����

9:;<=>?@::<=A>

��(����������������	� �%�  �"��
��*�&���	����- 
	%���"����������"�������"� �� ���

%�� 
�� ���	�������
�� �	������*�� ����&��� ���	��!��������	��	��
��"$����
 �&���	����������� ���	���	��
%�,�������""����������	���	�������
��"������ �
���

%��������)����+������$������� 
�
	����	�"���"�"�
����	�
���	����	����%���
�� ��&	�����	���"� �%� ������
�"����
�&������	���� ����  ��	�����������������

4�(����� 
�
	����
��"�� 
��"������""���
����#�" 

&$���	�������"�%�&��+�
#��� 

&����������������"��� $�������+� 

&���"���
� ������
�� 

&	$�
� 
��"�����""���
��������������
&&
"���
����"��
�� �#�������
������
�	����&�*�

%������ ����)���
��"���	
��"" �		�������  �����

 ���	�����
��
%������ 
�� �+$�
���������,�������""������"� 

%�����	�#�����	�	�����#�����"�"� �#�������	��
#���%��	�
%������ 
�
	���� ���
��"��0
���� $�����������
�� ������&���"�
�
�� �#���
��&�"��������	�� ��� "	$����������������������������&���"��������
�������#
����
������ �	�����
%�	�  
��"����"����
�&���$����	��
��"��
��

�������������� &��"����%��"��
���� ���� ���"������ ��������

BCDEFGAHCD>>

���(/
 ����� ��	
�	������$������ 
�
	����
��"��
�����
 "����������"����
�&���������
������������	�����
������� ��� ���
�&��� �����
�	�"� ���
�	��������"����������
�������	�
��"�#��"��� &���"�
��� ������������
 "��������������"����
�&����������)�
��� �%
 ���
����"������������������	�
��"�#��"�	&�		�"���

IJIKLMMNOPQI

� )R6�7-�S8�>

Page 96



 1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
December 2023 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PLANNING ENFORCEMENT 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO – HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT 

  

 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL (NON KEY DECISION) 
COUNCIL 
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain  
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
This Report provides statistical information on 
Enforcement activity between 1s t January 2023 to 1st 
December 2023  
 
 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to note the Report  
 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?     No  

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management N/A 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
   No  
(see paragraph below) 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
Yes             Comments 
 
 

Agenda  

Item  7 

 REPORT FOR INFORMATION 

Page 97

Agenda Item 7



 2 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
ALL 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  

 
 

   

    

 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
  

 This report presents a brief analysis of Enforcement performance and 
activity for the period between 1st January 2023 and 1st Dec 2023 and 

includes table 1 (below) showing a statistical analysis of performance 
over that period. 

 
 
 
 
1.2 Development without planning permission 

Constituents often express concern about development taking place without the 
appropriate planning permission. 

Carrying out development without planning permission is generally not a 
criminal offence (unless in relation to making changes to listed buildings and 
advertisements, which operate under separate regimes). Failure to comply with 
an enforcement notice, however, is a criminal offence. An enforcement notice is 
a notice requiring compliance with planning consent. If the notice is upheld, the 
penalty for failure to comply is a fine of up to £20,000 on summary conviction 
or an unlimited fine on indictment. 

1.3 Enforcement action 
Enforcement action is discretionary and local planning authorities are told to act 
in a proportionate way in responding to suspected breaches of planning control. 
The National Planning Policy Framework states that enforcement can be 
important for maintaining public confidence in the planning system, but 
enforcement action is discretionary and must be proportionate.  Detailed 
information about planning enforcement powers is given in the online Planning 
Practice Guidance on ensuring effective enforcement. For example, a local 
planning authority may decide not to take enforcement action if it believes that 
a development would have been granted planning permission. 
 
There are often complaints about lack of enforcement action. Such complaints 
may be taken to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO), 

Page 98

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/ensuring-effective-enforcement/planning-enforcement-overview/


 3 

although this step can only be taken once the local planning authority’s own 
complaints procedures have been completed. More information about this 
process is available from the LGSCO website. 

 
 
1.4 All Enforcement Notices served and Actions taken are considered against the 

provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998. In taking account of whether to serve 
an Enforcement Notice or take Action, which is a discretionary power afforded 
to Councils under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), 
consideration is taken as to whether the individual’s rights are affected and 
whether it is expedient to serve such a Notice or take Action against the 
individual. 
 
Any Enforcement Notice served is considered as to whether it is expedient to 
do so in accordance with the Council’s adopted Unitary Development Plan, 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Policy Guidance.  

 
Table 1 provides a detailed breakdown of the number and type of notice issued 
and other actions such as prosecutions during the quarter period. It also 
includes a performance standard in terms of the speed of the responses to 
initial site visits having been carried out. 

 
Table 1 
 

  Period 01/01/23 to 01/12/23 
Number of Complaints received                       458 

% where initial site visit within 10 working days 88.50% 

 (average time to visit 5 
working days) 

Number of complaints resulting in a breach of Planning Control 246 

Number of Enforcement Notices served 9 

Number of Stop Notices served 0 

Number of Breach of Condition Notices served 0 

Number of Section 215 Untidy land/building Notices served  2 

Number of Temporary Stop Notices served 2 

Number of Planning Contravention Notices served 0 

Number of Injunctions served 0 

Number of Prosecutions made  1 pending 

Number of Prosecutions referred to Legal for Prosecution 0 

Number of Formal Cautions issued / Interviews Under Caution 0 

Number of Works in Default actions taken 0 

Number of High Hedges Remedial/Tree Replacement Notices 
served 

0 

Total Number of Notices/Actions 15 

Page 99

http://www.lgo.org.uk/make-a-complaint/fact-sheets/planning-and-building-control/planning-enforcement


 4 

 
 
 
1.5 Of the above Notices/Actions 4 have made appeals to the Planning Inspectorate 

(PINS) and we are awaiting the adjudications from PINS. 5 notices are current 
and have yet to reach a conclusion, in terms of time to comply. The remainder 
have been concluded in that there has been compliance with the relevant Notice 
or Action. 

 
1.6 In 2021 there were a total of 5 Notices/Actions and in 2022 there were 6. All but 

one of these were complied with. One went to Court but was settled prior to a 
formal hearing.   This year’s figures may be seen as high when compared with 
previous years. Generally speaking, negotiations with ‘transgressors’ have 
resulted in alterations or applications being made.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
When looking at neighbouring authorities the department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities statistics show the number of Notices/Actions as; 
 
 
 
Bolton           12 
Bury             15 
Manchester   34 
Oldham          9 
Rochdale        5 
Salford           0 
Stockport     54 
Tameside       5 
Trafford       24 
Wigan           2 
 
 
 
 
2.0 CURRENT STAFFING LEVELS AND WORKING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
2.1 The Enforcement Team currently comprises of a Senior Planning Enforcement 

Officer and a Planning Enforcement Officer, who are employed full time. The 
Officers deal with complaint cases on a Borough wide basis, in accordance with 
the Council’s Customer Charter for the Planning Enforcement Service.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



 5 

 
 

 
3.0    WORKLOAD/COMPLAINT CASES RECEIVED AND TRENDS IDENTIFIED 
 
3.1 Table 1 above sets out statistical information for the period 1st January 2023 to 

the 1st December 2023.  
 
We have received 458 ‘complaints’ between the above dates which compares 
with 414 in 2021 and 416 for 2022, for the same time periods. The types of 
complaint are categorised in table form below. 
 
 

3.2 It should be noted that complaints that have been logged towards the end of 
the month are still being investigated as we are awaiting responses from 
owners.   
 
Where a site visit is required, we are currently visiting sites within 10 working 
days.  
 
It should be noted that there are still delays in some areas following the Covid 
pandemic. Courts, Planning Inspectorate and Land Registry to name three, can 
have an impact on the conclusion of investigations or actions. 
 
We still have a number of pending notices. Negotiations with the planning 
department have been undertaken and are awaiting information that can allow 
the planning matters to be discharged. We continue to monitor these cases. 

 

 
 

 
4.0 Complaints Categorisation 
 
4.1 The 458 complaints we have received between January 1s t 2023 to the 1s t of 

December 2023 can be largely categorised as follows (The previous year is 
within the brackets); 

 
Untidy land –                                                 53 (43)  

 
Outbuildings -                                                103 (87)  

 
Breach of Conditions –                                   82 (76) 

 
Fences/Decking –                                          46 (38) 

 
Not built in Accordance with approved Plans     47 (51) 

 
Trees –                                                           12 (24) 

 
Business –                                                      66 (52) 

 
Change of Use –                                              49 (32) 

 
 

 
 

Page 101



 6 

 
5.0   FORMAL NOTICES SERVED/ACTIONS TAKEN 
 
5.1 As previously stated, we have a number of Notices that are held in abeyance due 

to applications being made to the Planning department that are being currently 
being considered. 

 
 
6.0 Enforcement Appeal Decisions 
 

There are, currently, 4no Enforcement Appeal Decisions that are being 
considered by the Planning Inspectorate  
 
These are; 
 
a) Enforcement Notice to demolish a house which has been wrongly sited 

(forward of the approved building line) and also a further storey added. The 
Planning Department would not support this. 

b) Enforcement Notice on a property which was not built to the approved plans. 
Effectively, the owners have added another storey to the building and have 
also added a balcony. The Planning Department would not support this. 

c) Enforcement Notice relating to extensive decking. This could not be supported 
by the Planning Department due to the area covered and the height. 

d) Enforcement Notice relating to the removal of buildings erected on land within 
a Conservation Area.  

 
 

 
 

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The majority of cases logged in the past 11 months have generally been dealt 

with via negotiation and applications being submitted to the Development 
Management Team. Others, when looked into, have complied with Permitted 
Development Rights and there has been no further action. There are three or 
four cases currently that may require more formal action.  Action on those cases 
where notices have been issued and held in abeyance, will be dependent on 
planning application outcomes. 

 
7.2 The need to thoroughly investigate complaints, draft and issue the formal 

notices, monitor existing enforcement notices served for compliance, prepare 
appeal statements is continuing to have a significant impact on the workload of 
the Enforcement Team, however, this is the nature of the work. 

 
7.3 The service provided is primarily a reactive one in that we respond to complaints 

received from members of the public. It is recognised that the workload levels 
are such that the Enforcement Charter reply times are not being hit in some 
minor cases but where significant breaches arise, these are dealt with well within 
the Charter reply times. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 102



 7 

 
 

 
Contact Details:- 
 

David Marno 
Head of Development Management 

Regulation and Resources  
3 Knowsley Place 

Duke Street 
Bury BL9 0EJ 

 
Tel: 0161 253 5291 
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 21st November 2023
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Item 1 Final
	92f417d7-49f6-43eb-8453-be98934525c9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ECL.9595.D01.002-Layout1


	7f77dbfe-b399-4454-9960-8ea408ef6e44.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ECL.9595.D01.004-Layout1


	db6b98d9-3988-46b3-8c37-c489249a9c0d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ECL.9595.D01.007-Layout1



	Item 2 Final
	16f4b13e-f8aa-424f-a87f-208b50af8742.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1205


	432bf7ae-3dda-4fe9-ac57-fe00b446251a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1206


	5adb21b4-1666-405e-9bdb-1e22696d413b.pdf
	Sheets
	1301 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN


	c075699a-768c-4662-b860-4a2ad5904a8d.pdf
	Sheets
	1401 - PROPOSED ELEVATIONS


	c0d12b3c-f2c6-4fe8-8085-85fea344f5d0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1402



	Item 3 Final

	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals
	7 Planning Enforcement

